
 

Individuals addressing the Council are asked to step to the microphone and clearly state their name and 
address before speaking. In accordance with ADA guidelines, if you need special accommodations to 

attend any city meeting, please notify the City Clerk’s Office at 417-732-3101 at least three days prior to 
the scheduled meeting. All meetings are recorded for public viewing. 

Matt Russell, Mayor 
Eric Gerke, Ward I 

Garry Wilson, Ward II 
Christopher Updike, Ward III 

Jennifer Mitchell, Ward IV 

Eric Franklin, Ward I 
Gerry Pool, Ward II 

Brandon Self, Ward III 
Clint Gerlek, Ward IV 

 
 
 

AGENDA 
City Council Meeting 

Municipal Court Building, 540 Civic Blvd  

February 07, 2023 at 6:00 PM 

Call Meeting to Order 

Opening Prayer 

Pledge of Allegiance 

Citizen Participation 

Mayor's Announcements 

1. Appointment of Jeff Hayes to the Planning and Zoning Commission for a 4 year Term. 

Consent Agenda 

2. Approve December 6, 2022 City Council Workshop Minutes. 

3. Approve January 12, 2023 City Council Workshop Minutes. 

4. Approve January 17, 2023 City Council Minutes. 

5. Approve Vendor List. 

6. As per RSMo. 109.230(4), City records that are on file in the City Clerk’s office and have met the 
retention schedule will be destroyed in compliance with the guidelines established by the 
Secretary of State’s office. 

Board, Commission, and Committee Schedule 
Planning & Zoning Meeting   February 13, 2023 
City Council Meeting    February 21, 2023 
Supervisor’s Meeting   March 2, 2023 
Board of Adjustment Meeting  March 2, 2023 
City Council Meeting   March 7, 2023 

Old Business and Tabled Items 

7. 23-01 An Ordinance of the City Council Approving the Final Plat of the Westbury Gardens Phase 
Two Subdivision. 

8. 23-02 An Ordinance of the City Council Approving the Final Plat of the Wilson's Creek Villas 
Subdivision. 

New Business (First Reading of Ordinances) 

Other Business (Resolutions) 

9. 23-R-05  A Resolution of the City Council Authorizing Execution of the Phase 2 Contract Price 

Amendment with Burns and McDonnell Engineering Co., Inc. for Capital Improvement Project #6 

(CIP #6). 

10. 23-R-06 A Resolution of the City Council Authorizing the BUILDS Department to Apply for the Raise 
Discretionary Grant in Partnership with the Ozarks Transportation Organization to be used 
Toward the Highway MM Realignment. 

1



 

11. 23-R-07 A Resolution of The City Council Authorizing Execution of an Agreement with Springfield 
Winwater Works Co. for the Purchase of Water Meters to Meet the City’s Anticipated Needs in 
2023.   

12. 23-R-08 A Resolution of the City Council Appointing Network Engineer James Strathdee as 

Replacement to Deputy City Administrator Andrew Nelson to Serve as the City’s Alternate 

Regional Broadband Initiative Board Member. 

Reports from Staff 

Executive Session:  No further action, other than announcing adjournment by the Mayor, shall take place 
after an Executive Session that is scheduled as the last matter on the Agenda unless otherwise stated on 
the Agenda or as allowed per RSMo. 610.02. 

   1.    RSMo 610.021.1 Pending and/or potential litigation. Closed session. Closed vote. Closed record. 

   2.    RSMo 610.021.2 Real estate acquisition. Closed session. Closed vote. Closed record. 

   3.    RSMo 610.021.3 Hiring, firing, promotion, or disciplining personnel. Closed session. Closed vote. 
Closed record. 

Adjournment 
 
 

2



 

 

 

 

CERTIFICATE OF APPOINTMENT 
 

to 

Planning and Zoning Commission 
 

Jeff Hayes 

 
 

By The Republic City Council  

Date of Appointment 

February 7, 2023-February 6, 2027 

 

Matt Russell 

Mayor 
3

Item 1.



 

 
1 | P a g e  

C i t y  C o u n c i l  W o r k s h o p ,  D e c e m b e r  0 6 ,  2 0 2 2  

Matt Russell, Mayor 
Eric Gerke, Ward I 

Garry Wilson, Ward II 
Christopher Updike, Ward III 

Jennifer Mitchell, Ward IV 

Eric Franklin, Ward I 
Gerry Pool, Ward II 

Brandon Self, Ward III 
Clint Gerlek, Ward IV 

 
 
 
 

MINUTES 
City Council Workshop 

Municipal Court Building, 540 Civic Blvd  

December 06, 2022 at 5:00 PM 

Call Meeting to Order 

The work session meeting of the City Council of the City of Republic, Greene County, Missouri, was called 
to order by Mayor Matt Russell at 5:00 p.m. Council Members present included Eric Franklin, Garry Wilson, 
Eric Gerke, Chris Updike, Clint Gerlek, Brandon Self, and Gerry Pool. Others in attendance were: City 
Attorney Megan McCullough, Police Chief Brian Sells, Police Major Jamie Burks, Assistant Parks and 
Recreation Director Jennafer Mayfield, Assistant BUILDS Administrator Garrett Brickner, Fire Chief Duane 
Compton, Chief of Staff Lisa Addington, Assistant City Administrator/Parks and Recreation Director Jared 
Keeling, and IT Director Chris Crosby. 

Presentations and Discussions 

1. Elected Official Training-Presented by Joe Lauber 

Joe Lauber presented an Elected Official Training to Council and answered questions of Council Members. 

Adjournment 

Mayor Russell adjourned the meeting at 6:00 p.m. 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
__________________________________         ___________________________ 
Laura Burbridge, City Clerk                                    Matt Russell, Mayor 
 

4

Item 2.



 

 
1 | P a g e  

S u p e r v i s o r  M e e t i n g  W o r k  S e s s i o n ,  J a n u a r y  1 2 ,  2 0 2 3  

Matt Russell, Mayor 
Eric Gerke, Ward I 

Garry Wilson, Ward II 
Christopher Updike, Ward III 

Jennifer Mitchell, Ward IV 

Eric Franklin, Ward I 
Gerry Pool, Ward II 

Brandon Self, Ward III 
Clint Gerlek, Ward IV 

 
 
 
 

MINUTES 
Supervisor Meeting Work Session 

Community Center, 711 E. Miller Road  

January 12, 2023 at 9:00 AM 

Call Meeting to Order 

The work session meeting of the City Council of the City of Republic, Greene County, Missouri, was called 
to order by David Cameron at 9:00 a.m. Council Members present for the meeting included Eric Franklin, 
Garry Wilson, Eric Gerke, Chris Updike, Clint Gerlek, Brandon Self, and Jennifer Mitchell.  City 
Administrators were present along with department directors and supervisors from each department. 

Welcome 

City Administrator David Cameron welcomed everyone to the meeting and gave an overview of the plan 
and purpose of the meeting.   

Challenges, Direction, Vision, and Expectations 

City Administrator David Cameron gave an overview of the organizational accomplishments and vision for 
2023. 

Lunch Discussion of Organizational and Community Priorities 

City Administrator David Cameron led a discussion about takeaways from the article “Who's Got the 
Monkey?” 

Survey Completion 

City Administrator David Cameron distributed a survey to Council and staff to complete.  Surveys were 
collected for later review.  Council Member Brandon Self left the meeting at 10:30 a.m.  Council Member 
Jennifer Mitchell arrived at 11:20 a.m. 

Lunch was served at 11:30 a.m. with the work session resuming at 12:00 p.m. 

Growth and Development, Projects, Funding, and Secured Funding 

Deputy City Administrator Andrew Nelson presented on future projects of the city.  Assistant City 
Administrator/Parks and Recreation Director Jared Keeling presented information on future Parks 
projects. 

Planned Street Improvements 2023 

Deputy City Administrator Andrew Nelson presented on the paving plan and other street 
improvements.  Council Members Eric Gerke, Clint Gerlek, and Chris Updike left the meeting at 1:00 p.m. 

Housing Discussion 

Deputy City Administrator Andrew Nelson presented housing density and affordability information and 
answered questions from Council and staff. 

Wage Survey 

Chief of Staff Lisa Addington presented the 2022 wage analysis. 

Adjournment 

The work session adjourned at 2:00 p.m. 
 

5

Item 3.



 

 
 2 | P a g e  

S u p e r v i s o r  M e e t i n g  W o r k  S e s s i o n ,  J a n u a r y  1 2 ,  2 0 2 3  

 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
__________________________________         ___________________________ 
Laura Burbridge, City Clerk                                    Matt Russell, Mayor 
 

6

Item 3.



 

 
1 | P a g e  

C i t y  C o u n c i l  M e e t i n g ,  J a n u a r y  1 7 ,  2 0 2 3  

Matt Russell, Mayor 
Eric Gerke, Ward I 

Garry Wilson, Ward II 
Christopher Updike, Ward III 

Jennifer Mitchell, Ward IV 

Eric Franklin, Ward I 
Gerry Pool, Ward II 

Brandon Self, Ward III 
Clint Gerlek, Ward IV 

 
 
 
 

MINUTES 
City Council Meeting 

Municipal Court Building, 540 Civic Blvd  

January 17, 2023 at 6:00 PM 

Call Meeting to Order 

The regular session meeting of the City Council of the City of Republic, Greene County, Missouri, was 
called to order by Mayor Matt Russell at 6:00 p.m. Council Members present included Eric Franklin, Garry 
Wilson, Eric Gerke, Chris Updike, Clint Gerlek, Brandon Self, Jennifer Mitchell, and Gerry Pool. Others in 
attendance were: City Administrator David Cameron, Deputy City Administrator Andrew Nelson, City 
Attorney Megan McCullough, Police Chief Brian Sells, Assistant Parks and Recreation Director Jennafer 
Mayfield, Assistant BUILDS Administrator Garrett Brickner, Fire Chief Duane Compton, Chief of Staff Lisa 
Addington, Assistant City Administrator/Parks and Recreation Director Jared Keeling, Principal Planner 
Chris Tabor, City Clerk Laura Burbridge, and IT Director Chris Crosby. 

Opening Prayer 

Opening prayer was led by City Administrator David Cameron. 

Pledge of Allegiance 

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Mayor Matt Russell. 

Citizen Participation 

Mayor Russell opened citizen participation at 6:01 p.m.  No one came forward so Mayor Russell closed 
citizen participation at 6:01 p.m. 

Consent Agenda 

Motion was made by Council Member Pool and seconded by Council Member Updike to approve the 
consent agenda. The vote was 8 Aye-Franklin, Gerke, Gerlek, Mitchell, Pool, Self, Updike, and Wilson. 0 
Nay. Motion Carried. 

1. Approve December 6, 2022 City Council Minutes. 

2. Approve Vendor List. 

3. As per RSMo. 109.230(4), City records that are on file in the City Clerk’s office and have met the 
retention schedule will be destroyed in compliance with the guidelines established by the 
Secretary of State’s office. 

4. 23-R-01 A Resolution of the City Council Authorizing the City Administrator to Increase the Not-

To-Exceed Amount for the City’s Engagement of Outside Legal Counsel for Environmental 

Compliance Matters. 

Board, Commission, and Committee Schedule 
Board of Adjustment Meeting  February 2, 2023 
City Council Meeting   February 7, 2023 
Planning & Zoning Meeting   February 13, 2023 
City Council Meeting    February 21, 2023 

 

 

7

Item 4.



 

 
 2 | P a g e  

C i t y  C o u n c i l  M e e t i n g ,  J a n u a r y  1 7 ,  2 0 2 3  

Old Business and Tabled Items 

5. 22-63 An Ordinance of the City Council Approving a Developer Agreement with Stone Creek 

Development LLC. 

Motion was made by Council Member Updike and seconded by Council Member Pool to have the 
second reading of Bill 22-63 by title only. The vote was 8 Aye-Franklin, Gerke, Gerlek, Mitchell, 
Pool, Self, Updike, and Wilson. 0 Nay. Motion Carried. Garrett Brickner was available to answer 
questions.  Council Member Updike motioned for the passage of Bill 22-63. Council Member 
Franklin seconded. A roll call vote was taken digitally. The vote was 8 Aye-Franklin, Gerke, Gerlek, 
Mitchell, Pool, Self, Updike, and Wilson.  0 Nay.  Motion Carried.  

6. 22-64 An Ordinance of the City Council Approving Execution of an Intergovernmental Agreement 

with City Utilities of Springfield, Missouri to Deliver Electric Service to the Brookline South Lift 

Station.  

Motion was made by Council Member Updike and seconded by Council Member Mitchell to have 
the second reading of Bill 22-64 by title only. The vote was 8 Aye-Franklin, Gerke, Gerlek, Mitchell, 
Pool, Self, Updike, and Wilson. 0 Nay. Motion Carried. Garrett Brickner was available to answer 
questions.  Council Member Updike motioned for the passage of Bill 22-64. Council Member Pool 
seconded. A roll call vote was taken digitally. The vote was 8 Aye-Franklin, Gerke, Gerlek, Mitchell, 
Pool, Self, Updike, and Wilson.  0 Nay.  Motion Carried.  

7. 22-65 An Ordinance of the City Council Approving Budget Amendment No. 2 to the Budget for 

the Fiscal Year 2022. 

Motion was made by Council Member Updike and seconded by Council Member Franklin to have 
the second reading of Bill 22-65 by title only. The vote was 8 Aye-Franklin, Gerke, Gerlek, Mitchell, 
Pool, Self, Updike, and Wilson. 0 Nay. Motion Carried. Jared Keeling provided updated information 
since the last meeting and Council reviewed the proposed amended ordinance.  Council Member 
Self motioned to strike the totals of the Parks and Recreation Fund, CIST Fund, and Grant Fund 
and replace with the new numbers provided by staff.  Council Member Updike seconded.  The 
vote was 8 Aye-Franklin, Gerke, Gerlek, Mitchell, Pool, Self, Updike, and Wilson.  0 Nay.  Motion 
Carried.  Council Member Self motioned for the passage of Bill 22-65. Council Member Updike 
seconded. A roll call vote was taken digitally. The vote was 8 Aye-Franklin, Gerke, Gerlek, Mitchell, 
Pool, Self, Updike, and Wilson.  0 Nay.  Motion Carried.  

New Business (First Reading of Ordinances) 

8. 23-01 An Ordinance of the City Council Approving the Final Plat of the Westbury Gardens Phase 
Two Subdivision. 

Motion was made by Council Member Self and seconded by Council Member Updike to have the 
first reading of Bill 23-01 by title only. The vote was 8 Aye-Franklin, Gerke, Gerlek, Mitchell, Pool, 
Self, Updike, and Wilson. 0 Nay. Motion Carried. Chris Tabor provided an overview of the 
bill.  Mayor Russell reminded Council that this is a first read and to get with staff prior to the next 
meeting with any questions. 

9. 23-02 An Ordinance of the City Council Approving the Final Plat of the Wilson's Creek Villas 
Subdivision. 

Motion was made by Council Member Wilson and seconded by Council Member Updike to have 
the first reading of Bill 23-02 by title only. The vote was 8 Aye-Franklin, Gerke, Gerlek, Mitchell, 
Pool, Self, Updike, and Wilson. 0 Nay. Motion Carried. Chris Tabor provided an overview of the 

8

Item 4.



 

 
 3 | P a g e  

C i t y  C o u n c i l  M e e t i n g ,  J a n u a r y  1 7 ,  2 0 2 3  

bill.  Mayor Russell reminded Council that this is a first read and to get with staff prior to the next 
meeting with any questions. 

Other Business (Resolutions) 

10. 23-R-02 A Resolution of the City Council Authorizing the City Administrator to Retain an Outside 

Consulting Firm to Assist with the Recruitment, Selection and Post-Offer Process for the Finance 

Director and Finance Manager Positions. 

Motion was made by Council Member Wilson and seconded by Council Member Pool to approve 
Resolution 23-R-02. David Cameron provided an overview of the Resolution. The vote was 8 Aye-
Franklin, Gerke, Gerlek, Mitchell, Pool, Self, Updike, and Wilson. 0 Nay. Motion Carried.  
 

11. 23-R-03 A Resolution of the City Council Authorizing the City Administrator to Retain an Outside 

Consulting Firm to Assist with the Recruitment, Selection and Post-Offer Process for an Engineer 

Vacancy. 

Motion was made by Council Member Updike and seconded by Council Member Franklin to 
approve Resolution 23-R-03. David Cameron provided an overview of the Resolution. The vote 
was 8 Aye-Franklin, Gerke, Gerlek, Mitchell, Pool, Self, Updike, and Wilson. 0 Nay. Motion Carried.  

12. 23-R-04 A Resolution of the City Council Appointing Assistant BUILDS Administrator Garrett 

Brickner as the City’s Director of the Southwest Missouri Joint Municipal Water Utility Commission 

And BUILDS Administrator Karen Haynes As The City’s Alternate. 

Motion was made by Council Member Updike and seconded by Council Member Wilson to 
approve Resolution 23-R-04. Garrett Brickner provided an overview of the Resolution. The vote 
was 8 Aye-Franklin, Gerke, Gerlek, Mitchell, Pool, Self, Updike, and Wilson. 0 Nay. Motion Carried.  

Reports from Staff 

City Administrator David Cameron thanked Mayor Russell, Council, and staff for attending the work 
session to discuss the priorities of the City.  Mr. Cameron added he appreciated the feedback and looks 
forward to sharing that feedback.  Mr. Cameron noted he will increase the information that goes out in 
the Administrator's Report.  Our communication can improve and we are moving forward and turning 
inward to improve processes and glean from the feedback.  Mr. Cameron added we need to understand 
what we can improve on.  Mr. Cameron noted development isn't slowing down and we have companies 
from all over looking to move here, but we need to work on our processes.  Mr. Cameron reported we 
will build on that and do a follow up work session next month.   

City Administrator David Cameron announced we have posted the opening for Public Information Officer, 
noting Jennafer has handled it brilliantly, but we need more communication internally and externally to 
get our message out.  Mr. Cameron noted we received 25 million dollars last June and found out we got 
5 million dollars in the omnibus bill through Congressman Long.  Mr. Cameron reported he met with 
leadership in the House of Representatives last week and discussed the meetings with the Mayor shortly 
after.  Our request has been made again and the meetings went well with Representative Davidson, 
Representative Riley, Representative Deaton, and Representative Owen this week.  Mr. Cameron added 
he will be meeting with Representative Curtis Trent soon as well.  Mr. Cameron added we continue to 
work hard to get utility rates down and to minimize the impact to citizens, but we have to work on that 
plant.  Mr. Cameron reported we are working with our attorneys and engineers to keep the City in 
compliance and the State has stepped up.  We have been working on a lot of things that we just aren't 
communicating.  Mr. Cameron noted that the Hines and Lynn roundabout is coming.  Mr. Cameron shared 

9

Item 4.



 

 
 4 | P a g e  

C i t y  C o u n c i l  M e e t i n g ,  J a n u a r y  1 7 ,  2 0 2 3  

he is proud of the funding we have generated, which totaled 97 million dollars for the community in the 
last five years.  It is our responsibility to find those funds but we should share the information.  Mr. 
Cameron noted we are good at being vulnerable but not great at sharing our story. 

City Administrator David Cameron thanked staff for their vision and thanked the community. 

Council Member Franklin thanked staff for the workshop last week, noting he appreciated the perspective 
from supervisors.  Mr. Franklin added it was a great session and he is looking forward to the next work 
session. 

Mayor Russell thanked Mr. Cameron for doing the work session, noting it is easy to not do it but it takes 
a lot to stop and say we can do better.  Mayor Russell noted the next day, he went to the animal shelter 
with his son, Nick, who had a project at school to pay it forward.  Mayor Russell spoke to Christina Elmore, 
who said the workshop was the best thing she has experienced in this job.  Mayor Russell noted this was 
a great thing. 

Executive Session:  No further action, other than announcing adjournment by the Mayor, shall take place 
after an Executive Session that is scheduled as the last matter on the Agenda unless otherwise stated on 
the Agenda or as allowed per RSMo. 610.02. 

RSMo 610.021.13  Individually identifiable personnel records, performance ratings or records pertaining 
to employees or applicants for employment, except that this exemption shall not apply to the names, 
positions, salaries and lengths of service of officers and employees of public agencies once they are 
employed as such, and the names of private sources donating or contributing money to the salary of a 
chancellor or president at all public colleges and universities in the state of Missouri and the amount of 
money contributed by the source 

Motion was made by Council Member Franklin and seconded by Council Member Pool at 6:36 p.m. to go 
into Executive Session under RSMo 610.021.13 Individually identifiable personnel records, performance 
ratings and records pertaining to employees or applicants for employment.  Closed session.  Closed 
vote.  Closed record. A roll call vote was taken. The vote was 8 Aye – Wilson, Updike, Pool, Self, Gerke, 
Mitchell, Gerlek, and Franklin.  0 Nay.  Motion carried.  

Motion was made by Council Member Franklin and seconded by Council Member Updike to adjourn the 
Executive Session Meeting at 7:12 p.m. A roll call vote was taken. The vote was 8 Aye – Mitchell, Updike, 
Pool, Self, Gerlek, Franklin, Wilson, and Gerke.  0 Nay.  Motion carried. 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
__________________________________         ___________________________ 
Laura Burbridge, City Clerk                                    Matt Russell, Mayor 
 

10

Item 4.



2/1/2023 9:14:10 AM Page 1 of 1

Vendor Audit Report
City of Republic For Date Range 01/01/2023 - 01/31/2023

Vendor Added Added User Deleted Deleted User

07998 - James River Animal Hospital 01/12/2023 SHERRI WOODS

07999 - National Archery In The Schools Program Inc 01/19/2023 SHERRI WOODS

08001 - Coro Medical LLC 01/23/2023 SHERRI WOODS

08002 - Critex LLC/Mr. Manhole 01/23/2023 SHERRI WOODS

08003 - SWMO Joint Water Utility Commission 01/23/2023 SHERRI WOODS

08004 - KC Elevate Lacrosse Inc 01/27/2023 SHERRI WOODS

08005 - Brock Wade 01/27/2023 SHERRI WOODS

Vendor Count: (7)

11

Item 5.



MISSOURI RETENTION MANUAL CODE NAME/DATE  OF RECORDS TO BE DISPOSED

DATE(S) OF 

DOCUMENTS RETENTION TIME NEEDED FOR RECORD

1611 Meter Reading Summary Report Consumption reports 2015-2017 5 years

GS 020 Work Orders Service Orders-UB 2007-2019 3 years

1610 Meter Books Meter and Account Number List 2006-2017 5 years

1602 Customer Account Cards Billing registers and account information, account list 2008-2017 5 years

GS 008  Accounts Receivable

Use Taxes-Motor Fuel, Motor Sales, Cigarette, 

Franchise, etc. 2012-2018 Completion of Audit

GS 047 Policy and Procedure Files Finance/UB/PCard Clerical Manuals 2004-2017

Retain routine clerical manuals until 

superseded, updated, or no longer 

needed for reference.

GS 004 Budget Preparation Budget Prep Information and handouts

2008-2011, 

2015-2017, 

2019 Completion of Audit plus 1 year

GS 010 Banking and Investment Records Monthly Bank Reconciliation 2004-2005 Completion of Audit plus 1 year

0717 Journal Entries Bank Reconciliation through Journal Entries Book 2014-2017 5 Years

GS 054 Fixed Assets Inventory Inventory-superseded 2000-2005

Retain current inventory in office until 

superseded. Retain superseded 

inventories through  Completion of 

Audit. 

GS 062 Employment Recruitment and Selection Records Unsuccessful candidates 2020-2021

Retain unsolicited applications and 

resumes 6 months if not returned to 

the solicitor; unsuccessful applications, 

background checks and other records 1 

year after position filled or recruitment 

canceled.

GS 064 Volunteer Records Parks and Recreation Coach Information/Backgrounds 2011-2019

3 years after separation; Unaccepted 

volunteer applications, 1 Year

GS 052 Building Applications and Permits ROW Permits 2013-2015

Retain other permits (including but not 

limited to: excavation/Dig Right 

notifications, curb cuts, culverts, 

pavement renewals, 

sidewalk/driveway) 5 years after 

expiration.

Record Destruction Request Form

12

Item 6.



1323 Backflow Prevention Testing Records Backflow Prevention Testing Records 2013-2016 5 years

GS 055 Bid Records Bid Documentation 2002, 2007

5 years after contract end if accepted; 3 

years not accepted

0718 Motor Fuel Usage Fuel Logs 2012-2013

5 years after contract end if accepted; 3 

years not accepted

GS 052 Building Applications and Permits2005 demolition documentation 2005

5 years after contract end if accepted; 3 

years not accepted

GS 076 Administrative Reports Activity Reports-Public Works 2008 Completion of Audit

GS 080 Buildings and Grounds Maintenance Reports Public Works job records 2008 3 years

WD 018 Inspection Records Backflow Prevention Records 2013-2016 5 years 
0101 Animal Bite Records Animal Control Records 2005-2007 2 years

0107 Animal Control Enumeration Records Animal Control Records 2005-2007 3 Years

0108 Ownership Verification Records-Animals Animal Control Records 2005-2007 2 years after court date

13

Item 6.



 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM ANALYSIS 
 

Project/Issue Name: 23-01 An Ordinance of the City Council Approving the Final Plat of the 
Westbury Gardens Phase 2 Subdivision. 

 
Submitted By: Chris Tabor, Principal Planner 
 
Date: February 7, 2023 
 

Issue Statement 
 
The City of Republic’s BUILDS Department received an Application for Westbury Gardens Phase 2 Final Plat 
on December 30, 2022. 
 

Discussion and/or Analysis 
 
The Final Plat of Westbury Gardens Phase 2 will legally divide approximately fourteen point two (14.2) acres 
of land into sixty-two (62) residential lots and includes the dedication of Right-of-Way, Utility, and Stormwater 
Easements.  The Final Plat includes approximately (2,255) linear feet of street and (2,175) linear feet of 
sidewalk. 
  
The Final Plat of Westbury Gardens Phase 1 conforms to the Development Plan approved by City Council on 
July 21, 2020. 
 
City Staff has reviewed the Final Plat and has determined that it substantially conforms to the requirements 
of the Approved Development Plan, in addition to the requirements of the City Code Chapter 410 Subdivision 
Regulations, and Article V Major Subdivision-Final Plat. 
 

Recommended Action 
 
Staff recommends approval of Westbury Gardens Phase 2 Final Plat. 

14

Item 7.



BILL NO. 23-01  ORDINANCE NO. 23- 
 

BILL NO. 23-01  ORDINANCE NO. 23- 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL APPROVING THE FINAL PLAT OF  
THE WESTBURY GARDENS PHASE TWO SUBDIVISION 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Republic, Missouri, (“City” or “Republic”) is a municipal corporation and 

Charter City located in Greene County, Missouri, being duly created, organized, and existing under the 
laws of the State of Missouri; and 
 

WHEREAS, on January 21, 2020, the City Council approved of the Preliminary Plat for the 
Westbury Gardens Phase 1 Subdivision in Resolution 20-R-02; and 
 

WHEREAS, on September 6, 2022, the BUILDS Department received an application for review and 
approval of the Final Plat of Phase 1 of the Westbury Gardens Subdivision (“Westbury Gardens Phase 1”); 
and  
  
 WHEREAS, on October 4, 2022, the City Council approved the Final Plat of Phase 1 for the 
Westbury Gardens Subdivision (“Westbury Gardens Phase 1”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, on December 30, 2022, the City Council received an application for review and 
approval of the Final Plat of Phase 2 of the Westbury Gardens Subdivision (“Westbury Gardens Phase 2”); 
and 
 

WHEREAS, the BUILDS Department has reviewed the Final Plat of Westbury Gardens Phase 2 and 
has determined it substantially conforms to the requirements of the Development Plan, the requirements 
of the City Code Chapter 410 Subdivision Regulations, and Article V Major Subdivision-Final Plat. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF REPUBLIC, MISSOURI, 

AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1: That all conditions imposed by the Planning and Zoning Commission and the City 
Council relating to the acceptance and approval of Westbury Gardens Phase 2 
have been met. 

 
Section 2: That the Final Plat of Westbury Gardens Phase 2, attached and incorporated 

herein as “Attachment 1”, is hereby approved in all respects. 
 

Section 3: That the approval of the Final Plat of Westbury Gardens Phase 2 is contingent 
upon the same being recorded within sixty (60) days after the approval certificate 
is signed and sealed under the hand of the City Clerk. 

 
Section 4: That the sale of lots and construction of structures in the Westbury Gardens 

Phase 2 shall not commence until the Final Plat of Westbury Gardens Phase 2 has 
been recorded. 

  
 Section 5:  The whereas clauses are hereby specifically incorporated herein by reference. 
  

Section 6: The provisions of this Ordinance are severable and if any provision hereof is 
declared invalid, unconstitutional, or unenforceable, such determination shall not 
affect the validity of the remainder of this Ordinance.  

15

Item 7.



BILL NO. 23-01  ORDINANCE NO. 23- 
 

BILL NO. 23-01  ORDINANCE NO. 23- 

 
Section 7: This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its passage as 

provided by law. 
 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Republic, Missouri, 
this __________ day of __________________, 2023. 
 
 
 
      __________________________________________ 
Attest:        Matt Russell, Mayor 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Laura Burbridge, City Clerk 
 
 
Approved as to Form:   

 
 

Final Passage and Vote: 

 

16

Item 7.



17

Item 7.



18

Item 7.



 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM ANALYSIS 
 

Project/Issue Name: 23-02 An Ordinance of the City Council of the City of Republic, Missouri, 
Approving the Final Plat of the Wilson’s Creek Villas Subdivision 

 
Submitted By: Chris Tabor, Principal Planner 
 
Date: February 7, 2023 
 

Issue Statement 
 
The City of Republic’s BUILDS Department received an Application for Wilson’s Creek Villas Final Plat on 
December 6, 2022. 
 

Discussion and/or Analysis 
 
The Final Plat of Wilson’s Creek Villas will legally divide approximately nine point two (9.2) acres of land into 
six (6) residential lots and includes the dedication of Right-of-Way, Utility, and Stormwater Easements.  The 
Final Plat includes approximately (340) linear feet of street and (300) linear feet of sidewalk to be dedicated 
to the City.  The plat also includes (1100) linear feet of street and (1800) linear feet sidewalk that will remain 
private 
  
The Final Plat of Wilson’s Creek Villas conforms to the Development Plan approved by City Council on July 9, 
2019. 
 
City Staff has reviewed the Final Plat and has determined that it substantially conforms to the requirements 
of the Approved Development Plan, in addition to the requirements of the City Code Chapter 410 
Subdivision Regulations, and Article V Major Subdivision-Final Plat. 
 

Recommended Action 
 
Staff recommends approval of Wilson’s Creek Villas Final Plat. 

19

Item 8.



BILL NO. 23-02  ORDINANCE NO. 23- 

BILL NO. 23-02  ORDINANCE NO. 23- 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL APPROVING THE FINAL PLAT OF  
THE WILSON’S CREEK VILLAS SUBDIVISION 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Republic, Missouri, (“City” or “Republic”) is a municipal corporation and 

Charter City located in Greene County, Missouri, being duly created, organized, and existing under the 
laws of the State of Missouri; and 
 

WHEREAS, on July 9, 2019, the City Council approved of the Development Plan for the Wilson’s 
Creek Villas Subdivision Planned Development District (“PDD”) in Ordinance 19-09; and 
 

WHEREAS, on December 6, 2022, the BUILDS Department received an application for review and 
approval of the Final Plat of the Wilson’s Creek Villas Subdivision (“Wilson’s Creek Villas Subdivision”); and  
 

WHEREAS, the BUILDS Department has reviewed the Final Plat of Wilson’s Creek Villas Subdivision 
and has determined it substantially conforms to the requirements of the Development Plan, the 
requirements of the City Code Chapter 410 Subdivision Regulations, and Article V Major Subdivision-Final 
Plat. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF REPUBLIC, MISSOURI, 

AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1: That all conditions imposed by the Planning and Zoning Commission and the City 
Council relating to the acceptance and approval of Wilson’s Creek Villas 
Subdivision have been met. 

 
Section 2: That the Final Plat of Wilson’s Creek Villas Subdivision, attached and incorporated 

herein as “Attachment 1”, is hereby approved in all respects. 
 

Section 3: That the approval of the Final Plat of Wilson’s Creek Villas Subdivision is 
contingent upon the same being recorded within sixty (60) days after the 
approval certificate is signed and sealed under the hand of the City Clerk. 

 
Section 4: That the sale of lots and construction of structures in the Wilson’s Creek Villas 

Subdivision shall not commence until the Final Plat of Wilson’s Creek Villas 
Subdivision has been recorded. 

  
 Section 5:  The whereas clauses are hereby specifically incorporated herein by reference. 
  

Section 6: The provisions of this Ordinance are severable and if any provision hereof is 
declared invalid, unconstitutional, or unenforceable, such determination shall not 
affect the validity of the remainder of this Ordinance.  

 
Section 7: This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its passage as 

provided by law. 
 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Republic, Missouri, 
this __________ day of __________________, 2023. 

20

Item 8.



BILL NO. 23-02  ORDINANCE NO. 23- 

BILL NO. 23-02  ORDINANCE NO. 23- 

 
 
 
      __________________________________________ 
Attest:        Matt Russell, Mayor 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Laura Burbridge, City Clerk 
 
 
Approved as to Form:   

 
Megan McCullough, City Attorney  
 

Final Passage and Vote: 

 

21

Item 8.



22

Item 8.



P
R

E
P

A
R

E
D

 F
O

R

W
IL

S
O

N
'S

 C
R

E
E

K
 V

IL
L

A
S

, 
L

L
C

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 L
O

C
A

T
IO

N
: 

H
IN

E
S

 S
T

R
E

E
T

R
E

P
U

B
L

IC
, 

G
R

E
E

N
E

 C
O

U
N

T
Y

, 
M

IS
S

O
U

R
I

N

T
IM

B
E

R
 O

A
K

 S
T

R
E

E
T

F
A

R
M

 R
O

A
D

 1
7

4

OAK COURT PLACE

LOT 10 LOT 11 LOT 12 LOT 13 LOT 14 LOT 15
LOT 17LOT 16

LOT 18

R
A

N
K

IN
 A

C
R

E
S

 4
T

H
 A

D
D

IT
IO

N

L
O

T
 6

L
O

T
 5

L
O

T
 4

L
O

T
 3

T
IM

B
E

R
 O

A
K

 S
T

R
E

E
T

BLAKE AVE

FINAL PLAT

OF

W ILSON'S CREEK V ILLAS 
A SUBDIVISION IN THE CITY OF REPUBLIC, GREENE COUNTY, MISSOURI

OWNER / DEVELOPER

WILSON'S CREEK VILLAS, LLC

871 US HIGHWAY 60

REPUBLIC, MO  65738

LOT 1

LOT 3

LOT 4

LOT 5

LOT 6

LOT 2

23

Item 8.



 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM ANALYSIS 
 

Project/Issue Name: 23-R-05  A Resolution of the City Council Authorizing Execution of the 
Phase 2 Contract Price Amendment with Burns and McDonnell 
Engineering Co., Inc. for Capital Improvement Project #6 (CIP #6). 

Submitted By: Karen Haynes, BUILDS Administrator 

Date: February 07, 2023 
 

 

Issue Statement 

A Resolution authorizing the City Administrator to execute a contract with Burns & McDonnell for Phase 

2 services for Capital Improvement Project (CIP) #6. 

Discussion and/or Analysis 

The City executed a Phase 1 Design-Build Contract with Burns & McDonnell for CIP #6 in February 2022, 

which included engineering design for the Lower Brookline Linear Improvements Project (CIP #6); the 

target price for the project was $9,000,000. 

The Phase 2 Contract includes completion of design services, procurement of all materials, and 

equipment, and construction of the improvements for a total contract price of $6,014,250, to be 

completed within (570) calendar days after the date of commencement of the contract.   

The contract also includes additional provisions for Allowances for unforeseen conditions, additional 

rock breaking/excavation, land restoration (seeding), unsuitable soils, tree disposal/replacement, and 

unknown lateral reconnections, with an estimated total of $835,705 across all Allowances, not included 

in the total contract sum.  The work associated under CIP #6 is budgeted and approved under the 

Master Services Contract with Burns & McDonnell for wastewater system improvements. 

Recommended Action 

Staff recommends approval.   

 

24

Item 9.



RESOLUTION NO. 23-R-05 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 22-R-05 

 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF THE PHASE 2 CONTRACT 
PRICE AMENDMENT  WITH BURNS AND MCDONNELL ENGINEERING CO., INC.  

FOR CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECT #6 (CIP#6)  
 

WHEREAS, the City of Republic, Missouri, (“City” and/or “Republic”) is a municipal corporation 

and Charter City located in Greene County, Missouri, being duly created, organized and existing under 

the laws of the State of Missouri; and 

WHEREAS, on February 15, 2022, via Resolution 22-R-09, the Council authorized the City to 

engage Burns & McDonnell Engineering Co., Inc. (“Engineer”) to provide engineering design and 

construction services on five (5) separate Phase 1 projects as part of the various improvements to the 

City’s wastewater system (“the Project”); and 

WHEREAS, in Resolution 22-R-09, the Council acknowledged the City’s intent to engage Engineer 

for five (5) additional projects to be known as “Phase 2”, for the construction of the designed 

improvements following completion of Phase 2; and 

WHEREAS, on February 18, 2022, the City and Engineer entered into a ‘Progressive Design-Build 

Agreement for Water and Wastewater Projects’ (“CIP#6 Master Agreement”) for the design and (future) 

construction of the project known as the ‘Lower Brookline Linear Improvements Project’ (CIP#6); and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the CIP#6 Master Agreement, prior to beginning work on Phase 2, the 

City and Engineer are required to execute a ‘Phase 2 Contract Price Amendment,’ which shall govern the 

price(s) and specifications for the CIP#6 work in Phase 2; and 

WHEREAS, in advance of proceeding with construction on CIP#6, the City now seeks the Council’s 

authorization to execute the Phase 2 Contract Price Amendment for CIP#6 with Engineer, allowing the 

parties to move forward with construction pursuant to the terms therein. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF REPUBLIC, MISSOURI, 

AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1.  The City Administrator, or designee, on behalf of the City, is authorized to execute 
the Phase 2 Contract Price Amendment for CIP#6, to be in substantially the same 
form as that attached hereto as “Attachment 1,” and provide or execute any other 
documents required to effect execution of said agreement. 

 
Section 2.  The City Administrator, or designee, on behalf of the City, is authorized to take the 

necessary steps to execute this Resolution. 

Section 3. The whereas clauses are hereby specifically incorporated herein by reference.  

Section 4. This Resolution shall take effect after passage as provided by law. 

PASSED AND APPROVED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Republic, Missouri, 
this __________ day of __________________, 2022. 
 
 
      __________________________________________ 
        Matt Russell, Mayor 
Attest: 
 

25

Item 9.



RESOLUTION NO. 23-R-05 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 22-R-05 

 

 
____________________________________ 
Laura Burbridge, City Clerk 
 
 
Approved as to Form:   

 
 
 
Final Passage and Vote: 

 

 

26

Item 9.



 
 

CIP 6 – Amendment #1 1 Rev 0 – January 13, 2023 

 

 
 

AMENDMENT 1 

Phase 2 Contract Price Amendment 

CIP#6: Lower Brookline Linear Improvements Project t 

 

This Amendment is entered into this _____ day of __________________, 2023 (the “Effective 

Date”) between the City of Republic (“Owner”) and Burns & McDonnell Engineering Co., Inc., a 

Missouri company (“Design-Builder”), and is governed by the terms and conditions of the 

Progressive Design-Build Agreement for Water and Wastewater Projects- CIP#6: Lower 

Brookline Linear Improvements Project dated February 18, 2022 (“Agreement”), which is 

incorporated herein by reference. Owner and Design-Builder are referred to individually as a 

“Party” and collectively as the “Parties”.  

1. Phase 2 Services to be performed: 

1.1 The Phase 2 Services to be performed shall be as listed in Exhibit B 

– Scope of Services. 

 

2. Phase 2 Contract Price: 

 

2.1 Owner shall pay Design-Builder in accordance with Article 6 of the General 

Conditions of Contract the sum of Six Million Fourteen Thousand Two Hundred Fifty  

Dollars ($6,014,250.00) for the Phase 2 services, subject to adjustments made in 

accordance with the Agreement and the General Conditions of Contract. This cost 

does not include Owner Allowances.  

 

3. Phase 2 Contract Time: 

3.1 Substantial Completion of the entire Work shall be achieved no later than  570 

calendar days after the Date of Commencement (“Scheduled Substantial Completion 

Date”). 

3.2 The Phase 2 Contract Time and adjustments thereto shall be as governed by the 

Agreement and the General Conditions of Contract. 

 

4. The following Exhibits are incorporated herein by reference: 

4.1 Exhibit “A” – Not Used 

4.2 Exhibit “B” – Scope of Services 

4.3 Exhibit “C” – Assumptions, Clarifications & Exclusions 

4.4 Exhibit “D” – Not Used 

4.5 Exhibit “E” – Anticipated Lost Days to Inclement / Adverse Weather 

4.6 Exhibit “F” – Not Used 

4.7 Exhibit “G” – Allowances 

4.8 Exhibit “H” – Permit Matrix 

4.9 Exhibit “I” – Geotechnical Soils Report 

4.10 Exhibit “J” – Schedule 

4.11 Exhibit “K” – Pre-final Design Documents 

27

Item 9.



 
 

CIP 6 – Amendment #1 2 Rev 0 – January 13, 2023 

 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Amendment as of the date first above 

written. 

OWNER:      DESIGN-BUILDER: 

 

City of Republic      Burns & McDonnell Engineering Company, Inc. 

(Name of Owner)     (Name of Design-Builder) 

 

              

(Signature)      (Signature) 

 

              

(Printed Name)      (Printed Name) 

 

              

(Title)       (Title) 

 

Date:         Date:        
 
 

28

Item 9.



 

CIP #6 (Lower Brookline Linear Improvements) includes approximately 12,000 linear feet of 18-36 inch 
Gravity Sewer improvements 

• West Farm Road 174 to Shuyler Creek Lift Station 
• Generally adjacent to current gravity sanitary sewer mains 
• Reduction in linear capacity restrictions 

 

29

Item 9.



 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM ANALYSIS 
 

Project/Issue Name: 23-R-06 A Resolution of the City Council Authorizing the BUILDS 
Department to Apply for the Raise Discretionary Grant in Partnership 
with the Ozarks Transportation Organization to be used Toward the 
Highway MM Realignment. 

Submitted By: Garrett Brickner, Assistant BUILDS Administrator 

Date: February 7, 2023 
 

Issue Statement 

The BUILDS Department would like to apply for the RAISE Discretionary Grant in partnership with the 

Ozarks Transportation Organization for a requested amount of $25,000,000 in funds to be used toward 

the Highway MM Corridor realignment project. 

Discussion and/or Analysis 

The City of Republic, in partnership with Ozarks Transportation Organization and the Missouri 

Department of Transportation, aims to realign Highway MM to enhance safety, provide for alternative 

modes of transportation, and add capacity to a rural route that is rapidly becoming a regional economic 

hub. This realignment will connect Highway MM to US Highway 60, close two at-grade railway crossings, 

add a new overpass over the railway, and expand a two-lane primary arterial into a five-lane 

expressway. 

The overall project has Five planned Segments. This RAISE Grant application will be applied toward 

Segments A, B, D, and E below: 

 Segment A runs from US 360 (James River Freeway) to Farm Road 160. This segment is to widen 

MM from three-lanes to five-lanes. Existing access is provided on both sides of the corridor to 

the corridor businesses.   

 Segment B runs from I-44 to US 360 (James River Freeway). This project adds lane capacity 

(two- lanes to five-lanes) and adds ADA sidewalk accommodations. This segment is currently 

moving forward as part of a cost-share project previously approved by MoDOT and the City of 

Republic. The intent would be to use money expended as part of the cost share, as a portion of 

the required local match for the RAISE Grant.  The Cost-Share project alone does not include 

the addition of any pedestrian facilities.  

 Segment C is a three-lane section that will run from US 60 south to along a new alignment to 

intersect with Highway M (Republic Rd.) at ZZ Highway. This will also include A 10-foot trail is 

30

Item 10.



 

proposed along the new alignment to give community connectivity and multimodal travel 

options. This trail will connect via the intersection at ZZ to a trail MoDOT is constructing from 

Wilson’s Creek National Battlefield to Republic High school.  Currently this section is on 

MoDOT’s unfunded needs list, and this section would not be part of the RAISE Grant ask.  

 Segment D realigns route MM from the current US 60/MM Intersection. It constructs a five-

lane cross-section between US 60 and Farm Road 160. Constructs a new signalized intersection 

at US 60 and Route MM. It also permanently closes and removes two at-grade railroad crossings 

and constructs a new overpass over the BNSF railroad with bicycle and pedestrian access. A 10-

foot trail is proposed along the new alignment to give community connectivity and multimodal 

travel options. It includes a two- lane roundabout intersection at Farm Road 160 in 

accommodate the anticipated growth.  MoDOT is working on design for this portion of the 

overall project with an estimated completion of the end of 2025. This portion will also serve as 

a contribution to the local match required.  

 Segment E consists of replacing the bridge over James River Freeway. There is currently a 

diamond interchange at James River Freeway, and the Bridge is only wide enough to 

accommodate the three lanes it currently has.  

 

If awarded, a local match of $16,421,000 would be required.  The City’s portion of match would be 

$1,342,000 million. This would be partially provided by a combination of work already being funded 

through the Cost Share agreement and additional funds contributed by the State of Missouri.  The overall 

cost of each phase estimated in today’s dollars is below: 

 

 Segment A (Currently unfunded) –  $3.0 Million 

 Segment B (Cost Share) – $11.76 Million   

 Segment D (MoDOT Funded) – $32.09 Million Segment D Trail (Unfunded) - $ .90 million 

 Segment E (Currently unfunded) – $18.02 Million 

 Total estimated cost – $65.77 Million   

 

Non-Federal Project Funding Table: 

Non-Federal Project Funding Table  

Greene County $ 1.500 Million 

City of Republic $ 1.342 Million 

State of Missouri $13.579 Million 

Total Non-Federal $16.421 Million 

 

 

31

Item 10.



 

 

Federal Project Funding Table: 

 

Federal Project Funding Table  

Surface Transportation Block Grant (STBG) $22.493 Million 

Federal Safety Funds $   0.919 Million 

Open Container Penalty $   0.564 Million 

Transportation Alternative Program (TAP)  $   0.374 Million 

RAISE  $25.000 Million 

Total Federal  $49.350 Million 

 

 

In addition to the grant application ask the Highway MM Corridor Project includes Segment C (currently 

unfunded) - $30 million.  The completion of the Segment C will result in a total corridor investment of 

$95.77 million.   

 

Recommended Action 

Staff recommends approval. 

32

Item 10.



RESOLUTION NO. 23-R-06 

RESOLUTION NO. 23-R-06 

 

 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL AUTHORIZING THE BUILDS DEPARTMENT TO APPLY FOR THE 
RAISE DISCRETIONARY GRANT IN PARTNERSHIP WITH THE OZARKS TRANSPORTATION 

ORGANIZATION TO BE USED TOWARD THE HIGHWAY MM REALIGNMENT 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Republic, Missouri, (“City” and/or “Republic”) is a municipal corporation 

and Charter City located in Greene County, Missouri, being duly created, organized, and existing under 

the laws of the State of Missouri; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City’s BUILDS Department desires to apply for the RAISE Discretionary Grant 

through the Ozarks Transportation Organization (“OTO”) for a requested amount of $25,000,000, to be 
used toward the Highway MM realignment project (“the Realignment Project”); and 
 

WHEREAS, the Realignment Project is expected to benefit citizens and guests of the City by, 
among other things, providing an alternative route of transportation, enhancing roadway safety in and 
through the City, and adding capacity to a rural route that is rapidly becoming a regional economic hub; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Realignment Project has five planned segments (also known as Segments A 
[running from US 360 to Farm Road 160], B [running from I-44 to US 360], C [running from US 60 through 
a new alignment to Hwy M at Hwy ZZ], D [realigning Route MM from the current US 60/MM intersection], 
and E [replacing the bridge crossing over US 360);  
 

WHEREAS, if awarded, the funds from the RAISE grant would be applied toward Segments A, B, 
D and E; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that participating in grant opportunities such as the RAISE 
Discretionary Grant will result in beneficial savings to the City while increasing transportation options 
in and through the City and improving roadway safety and security for the City’s citizens and guests. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF REPUBLIC, MISSOURI, 

AS FOLLOWS: 

 
Section 1. The City of Republic’s BUILDS Department is authorized to apply for the RAISE 

Discretionary Grant through the Ozarks Transportation Organization for a 

requested amount of $25,000,000, to be used toward the Highway MM 

Realignment Project; and 

 

Section 2.  The City Administrator, or his/her designee(s), on behalf of the City, is authorized 

to take the necessary steps to implement this Resolution. 

 
Section 3.  This Resolution shall become effective on and after the date of passage and 

approval as provided by law.  

 
PASSED AND APPROVED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Republic, Missouri, 

this __________ day of __________________, 2023. 
 

33

Item 10.



RESOLUTION NO. 23-R-06 

RESOLUTION NO. 23-R-06 

 

 

 
      __________________________________________ 
        Matt Russell, Mayor 
Attest:  
 
 
____________________________________ 
Laura Burbridge, City Clerk 
 
 
Approved as to Form:   

 
Megan McCullough, City Attorney  
 
Final Passage and Vote: 
 

 

 

34

Item 10.



1 
 

G4910-9X 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

Office of the Secretary of Transportation 

Notice of Funding Opportunity for the Department of Transportation’s National 

Infrastructure Investments (i.e., the Rebuilding American Infrastructure with 

Sustainability and Equity (RAISE) Grant Program) under the Infrastructure Investment 

and Jobs Act (“Bipartisan Infrastructure Law”), Amendment No. 1  

AGENCY: Office of the Secretary of Transportation, DOT 

ACTION: Notice of Funding Opportunity  

SUMMARY: The purpose of this notice is to solicit applications for Rebuilding American 

Infrastructure with Sustainability and Equity (RAISE) grants. Funds for the FY 2023 RAISE 

grant program. will be awarded on a competitive basis, per statute, for surface transportation 

infrastructure projects that will improve: safety; environmental sustainability; quality of life; 

mobility and community connectivity; economic competitiveness and opportunity including 

tourism; state of good repair; partnership and collaboration; and innovation.1   This notice is 

amended on January 3, 2023 to reflect additional funding made available under the Consolidated 

Appropriations Act, 2023 (Pub L. 117-328, “FY 2023 Appropriations Act”) and associated 

requirements. 

DATES: Applications must be submitted by 11:59:59 PM Eastern on February 28, 2023.   

ADDRESSES: Applications must be submitted through Grants.gov.   

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: For further information concerning this 

notice, please contact the RAISE grant program staff via e-mail at RAISEgrants@dot.gov, or call 

Howard Hill at 202-366-0301. A TDD is available for individuals who are deaf or hard of 

 
1 49 U.S.C.6702(d)(3)  

35

Item 10.

mailto:RAISEgrants@dot.gov


2 
 

hearing at 202-366-3993. In addition, DOT will regularly post answers to questions and requests 

for clarifications on the FAQ website at https://www.transportation.gov/RAISEgrants/raise-

application-faqs as well as information about webinars for further guidance on DOT’s website at 

https://www.transportation.gov/RAISEgrants/outreach. 

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: Each section of this notice contains information and 

instructions relevant to the application process for these RAISE grants, and all applicants should 

read this notice in its entirety so that they have the information they need to submit eligible and 

competitive applications.  

Table of Contents  

A. Program Description 

B. Federal Award Information  

C. Eligibility Information 

D. Application and Submission Information 

E. Application Review Information 

F. Federal Award Administration Information 

G. Federal Awarding Agency Contacts 

H. Other Information  

A. Program Description  

1. Overview 

The Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act (Pub. L. 117-58, November 15, 2021, “Bipartisan 

Infrastructure Law,” or “BIL”) authorized and appropriated $1.5 billion to be awarded by the 

Department of Transportation (“DOT”) for FY 2023 for Local and Regional Project Assistance 

Program Grants under National Infrastructure Investments. On December 29, 2022, the FY 2023 

Appropriations Act appropriated an additional $800 million for the FY 2023 RAISE Grant 

36

Item 10.

https://www.transportation.gov/RAISEgrants/raise-application-faqs
https://www.transportation.gov/RAISEgrants/raise-application-faqs
https://www.transportation.gov/RAISEgrants/outreach


3 
 

Program. However, per Section 109B of the FY 2023 Appropriations Act, not less than $1 

million (but no greater than $25 million) of the $800 million made available for RAISE from the 

FY 2023 Appropriations Act, will be set aside for port infrastructure projects that received an 

award from the BUILD 2019 competition and rail infrastructure projects that received an award 

from the BUILD 2018 competition. Therefore, at least $775 million (but no more than $799 

million) of the FY 2023 Appropriations Act is now available under this RAISE 2023 Notice of 

Funding Opportunity (NOFO). In total, the Department now has at least $2.275 billion (but no 

more than $2.299 billion) available for the FY 2023 RAISE Grant Program. Applicants should 

note that the two funding streams (BIL funding and FY 2023 Appropriations Act funding) have 

slightly different funding restrictions and requirements that may affect competitiveness. These 

differences are summarized below and further described in Section B of this Notice. This NOFO 

solicits applications for projects to be funded under the Local and Regional Project Assistance 

Program in BIL, known as the RAISE Grants program, and funding appropriated for the RAISE 

Grants program under the FY 2023 Appropriations Act.  

RAISE Grants are for investments in surface transportation that will have a significant local 

or regional impact. Per the BIL, in addition to capital awards, DOT will award at least $115 

million for eligible planning, preparation or design of projects eligible for RAISE Grants that do 

not result in construction with FY2023 RAISE funding. At least $75 million will be awarded 

from the BIL funding and at least $40 million will be awarded from the FY 2023 Appropriations 

Act funding. 

In addition, DOT will award at least $35 million for projects located in areas of persistent 

poverty or historically disadvantaged communities. A minimum of $15 million will be awarded 

from the BIL funding and a minimum of $20 million will be awarded from the FY 2023 

Appropriations Act funding. RAISE grants awarded with BIL funding may not be greater than 

37

Item 10.



4 
 

$25 million, and grants awarded with FY 2023 Appropriations Act funding may not be greater 

than $45 million.  

Since 2009, $12.1 billion has been awarded under National Infrastructure Investments for 

capital investments in surface transportation infrastructure over 14 rounds of competitive grants.  

These awards have supported projects that improve safety, economic strength and global 

competitiveness, equity, and climate and sustainability consistent with DOT’s strategic goals.2 

FY 2023 RAISE grants will continue to align with these strategic goals. The FY 2023 RAISE 

round will be implemented, as appropriate and consistent with law, in alignment with the 

priorities in Executive Order 14052, Implementation of the Infrastructure Investments and Jobs 

Act (86 FR 64355), which are to invest efficiently and equitably, promote the competitiveness of 

the U.S. economy, improve job opportunities by focusing on high labor standards, strengthen 

infrastructure resilience to all hazards including climate change, and to effectively coordinate 

with State, local, Tribal, and territorial government partners. 

The BIL included provisions for Metropolitan Planning Organizations to integrate 

transportation planning, housing, employment opportunities, and economic development 

strategies.3 DOT strongly encourages applicants utilize these new planning coordination 

opportunities in their proposed projects and describe them in their applications. The Department 

also seeks to award projects under the RAISE Program that improve equity and environmental 

justice by addressing transportation-related disparities and climate change-related consequences 

consistent with Executive Order 13985, Advancing Racial Equity and Support for Underserved 

Communities Through the Federal Government (86 FR 7009) and Executive Order 14008, 

Tackling the Climate Crisis at Home and Abroad (86 FR 7619).The Department also seeks to 

 
2 See U.S. Department of Transportation Strategic Plan FY 2022–2026 (March 2022) at 
https://www.transportation.gov/dot-strategic-plan. 
3See BIL div. A § 11201., Transportation Planning, which amends 23 U.S.C. 134. 

38

Item 10.



5 
 

fund projects that, to the extent possible, target at least 40 percent of resources and benefits 

towards low-income communities, disadvantaged communities, communities underserved by 

affordable transportation, or overburdened4 communities.  

Section E of this NOFO, which outlines FY 2023 RAISE Grant selection criteria, describes 

the process for selecting projects that further these goals.  Section F.3 describes progress and 

performance reporting requirements for selected projects, including the relationship between that 

reporting and the program’s selection criteria. 

2. Additional Information 

The RAISE grant program is described in the Federal Assistance Listings under the 

assistance listing program title “National Infrastructure Investments” and assistance listing 

number 20.933. 

3. Changes from the FY 2022 NOFO 

This FY 2023 RAISE notice makes changes from FY 2022 RAISE to reflect the funding and 

provisions specified in the BIL for FY 2023 and the FY 2023 Appropriations Act.  

 Additionally, this NOFO refines the merit criteria rating rubric. For example, this NOFO 

continues to clarify the difference between the quality of life merit criterion (which focuses on 

increased affordable transportation choices and access to housing, jobs, opportunities and 

recreation) and the mobility and community connectivity merit criterion (which focuses on 

physical connections, bridging gaps, and universal design/ADA improvements).  Partnership and 

Collaboration now includes meaningful engagement with residents to ensure equity 

 
4 Overburdened Community: Minority, low-income, tribal, or indigenous populations or geographic locations in the 
United States that potentially experience disproportionate environmental harms and risks. This disproportionality 
can be as a result of greater vulnerability to environmental hazards, lack of opportunity for public participation, or 
other factors. Increased vulnerability may be attributable to an accumulation of negative or lack of positive 
environmental, health, economic, or social conditions within these populations or places. The term describes 
situations where multiple factors, including both environmental and socio-economic stressors, may act cumulatively 
to affect health and the environment and contribute to persistent environmental health disparities.5 
https://www.transportation.gov/federal-interagency-thriving-communities-network  

39

Item 10.

https://www.transportation.gov/federal-interagency-thriving-communities-network


6 
 

considerations for underserved communities throughout the lifecycle of the project as well as 

capacity building through the Federal interagency Thriving Communities Network5 which 

includes Department of Housing and Urban Development’s Thriving Communities Technical 

Assistance and the Environmental Protection Agency’s Environmental Justice Thriving 

Communities Technical Assistance Centers Program. Please see the merit criteria rating rubric in 

Section E.1.i. for more details.  

This NOFO also provides minor updates regarding process improvements and increased 

evaluation transparency. For example, in prior years, the Project Readiness area of Technical 

Capacity Assessment was evaluated for all eligible applications, but in FY 2023 it will only be 

evaluated for the subset of applications advancing for additional analysis after merit reviews, 

similar to the other Project Readiness areas (Environmental Risk Assessment and Financial 

Capacity Assessment). More details are provided in Section D and E of this NOFO. As another 

example, NOFO Section D.2 lists the separate and distinct files that each applicant should be 

submit as part of an application package, and DOT provides the application “checklist” on the 

RAISE website and grants.gov for ease of reference. 

Additionally, the FY 2023 NOFO also incorporates a new Reconnecting Communities Extra 

element. Applications for the FY 2023 RAISE grant program that have identical project scope to 

applications that were submitted and evaluated under the FY 2022 Reconnecting Communities 

Program and received the designation of Reconnecting Extra, will automatically advance for 

second-tier analysis if they receive an overall merit rating of “Recommended” and have at least 

one “High” rating in a priority criterion. (See Section E.2). The Department expects projects that 

rated well under the Reconnecting Communities Program criteria will do well under the FY 2023 

 
5 https://www.transportation.gov/federal-interagency-thriving-communities-network  

40

Item 10.

https://www.transportation.gov/federal-interagency-thriving-communities-network


7 
 

RAISE program criteria.  Applicants should note in the RAISE Project Information Form 

whether their FY 2023 RAISE application was also submitted under the FY 2022 Reconnecting 

Communities Program and received a Reconnecting Extra designation. Section E.2 of this Notice 

also provides more detail on the way selection criteria ratings will be used in the decision-

making process to advance projects to the Secretary for potential selection. 

Applicants who are planning to re-apply for the RAISE program using materials prepared 

for prior competitions should ensure that their FY 2023 RAISE application fully addresses the 

criteria and considerations described in this Notice and that all relevant information is up to date 

and submitted in the proper format. (See Section D).   

B. Federal Award Information  

1. Amount Available 

The BIL authorized and appropriated $1.5 billion to be awarded by DOT for RAISE grants 

under the Local and Regional Project Assistance Program (49 U.S.C. 6702) for FY 2023. On 

December 29, 2022, the FY 2023 Appropriations Act appropriated an additional $800 million for 

the FY 2023 RAISE Grant Program. However, per Section 109B of the FY 2023 Appropriations 

Act, not less than $1 million (but no greater than $25 million) of the $800 million made available 

for RAISE from the FY 2023 Appropriations Act, will be set aside for port infrastructure projects 

that received an award from the BUILD 2019 competition and rail infrastructure projects that 

received an award from the BUILD 2018 competition. Therefore, at least $775 million (but no 

more than $799 million) of the FY 2023 Appropriations Act is now available under this RAISE 

2023 NOFO. In total, the Department now has at least $2.275 billion (but no more than $2.299 

billion) available for the FY 2023 RAISE Grant Program. Applicants should note that the two 

funding streams (BIL funding and FY 2023 Appropriations Act funding) have slightly different 

funding restrictions and requirements that may affect competitiveness of certain request amounts. 

41

Item 10.



8 
 

The grants are to be awarded on a competitive basis for surface transportation projects that will 

have a significant local or regional impact and improve transportation infrastructure.  DOT will 

award at least $115 million for the planning, preparation or design of eligible projects; this 

amount includes 5 percent from each of the two available funding sources ($75 million (of the 

$1.5 billion) from BIL funds and $40 million (of the $800 million) from the FY 2023 

Appropriations Act). DOT refers to awards for the planning, preparation or design of eligible 

projects that do not result in construction with FY 2023 RAISE funding as planning grants. DOT 

will award at least $35 million for projects located in historically disadvantaged communities or 

areas of persistent poverty; this amount includes $15 million from available BIL funds and $20 

million from available FY 2023 Appropriations Act funds. The DOT may retain up to $30 

million from BIL funds and up to $16 million from FY 2023 Appropriations Act funds for 

oversight and administration of grants and credit assistance made under the program. The 

Department does not anticipate awarding additional funding from prior rounds; however, if 

unobligated program funds are made available from prior rounds, they may be awarded under 

this solicitation to projects that can be obligated before the obligation deadline associated with 

the respective prior year funds.  If this solicitation does not result in the award and obligation of 

all available funds, DOT may publish additional solicitations. 

DOT may use up to 20 percent of available funds (or $460 million) to be used by DOT to pay 

the subsidy and administrative costs of a project receiving credit assistance under the 

Transportation Infrastructure Finance and Innovation Act of 1998 (TIFIA) or Railroad 

Rehabilitation and Improvement Financing (RRIF) programs, particularly transit and transit-

oriented development (TOD) projects. In October 2022, the Secretary approved the “TIFIA 49 

Initiative” which authorizes transit and transit-oriented development (TOD) projects to borrow 

42

Item 10.



9 
 

up to 49 percent of eligible project costs for projects that meet eligibility requirements. TIFIA 

loans have historically been capped at 33 percent of eligible project costs.6 

2. Award Size  

For capital grants, the BIL specifies that the minimum RAISE grant award is $5 million in 

urban areas and $1 million in rural areas (as defined in Section C.3.ii). There is no minimum 

award amount for planning grants for BIL funds or FY2023 Appropriations Act Funds.   

Grants awarded under BIL funding may not be greater than $25 million. Grants awarded 

under FY 2023 Appropriations Act funding may not be greater than $45 million. Therefore, grant 

requests greater than $25 million will be considered only for FY 2023 Appropriations Act 

funding; they will not be eligible to compete for BIL funding. In order to be considered under the 

full funding amount available of $2.3 billion, the grant request may not exceed $25 million. 

3. Restrictions on Funding  

No more than 15 percent of the BIL funds made available for RAISE grants (or $225 million) 

may be awarded to projects in a single State. No more than 15 percent of the FY 2023 

Appropriations Act funding made available for RAISE grants (or $120 million) may be awarded 

to projects in a single State. Therefore, the maximum amount that can be awarded to any single 

state is $345 million. 

Not more than 50 percent of the respective funding provided for RAISE grants shall be 

awarded to rural projects (as defined in section C.3.ii,) and not more than 50 percent of the 

respective funding provided for RAISE grants shall be awarded to urban projects (as defined in 

section C.3.ii).. Therefore, not more than $1.15 billion will be awarded to urban and rural areas 

respectively; not more than $750 million from the BIL funding and not more than $400 million 

 
6 Contact the Build America Bureau for more information on TIFIA and RRIF financing. 
https://www.transportation.gov/buildamerica/ 

43

Item 10.



10 
 

from the FY 2023 Appropriations Act funding will be awarded to urban and rural areas 

respectively. 

Federal funds awarded under this program may not be used to support or oppose union 

organizing, whether directly or as an offset for other funds.  

4. Availability of Funds  

FY 2023 RAISE grant funds are available for obligation only through September 30, 2027. 

The FY 2023 Appropriations Act funding does not have this statutory requirement; however, to 

ensure that projects are started and completed in an efficient manner, the Department expects 

projects awarded with FY 2023 Appropriations Act funding to be obligated by the same date of 

September 30, 2027. Therefore, it shall be referred to in this Notice as the “obligation deadline” 

for all projects.  Obligation occurs when a selected applicant and DOT enter into a written grant 

agreement after the applicant has satisfied applicable administrative requirements, such as 

transportation planning and environmental review requirements for capital construction projects. 

Unless authorized by DOT in writing after DOT’s announcement of FY 2023 RAISE awards, 

any costs incurred prior to DOT’s obligation of funds for a project (“pre-award costs”) are 

ineligible for reimbursement.7  BIL requires that FY 2023 RAISE funds must be expended (the 

grant obligation must be liquidated or paid out to the grant recipient) by September 30, 2032. 

After this date, unliquidated funds are no longer available to the project. The FY 2023 

Appropriations Act funding does not have this statutory requirement; however, to ensure that 

projects are started and completed in an efficient manner, the Department expects projects 

 
7 Pre-award costs are only costs incurred directly pursuant to the negotiation and anticipation of the RAISE award 
where such costs are necessary for efficient and timely performance of the scope of work, as determined by DOT. 
Costs incurred under an advance construction (23 U.S.C. 115) authorization before the DOT announces that a 
project is selected for a FY 2023 RAISE award cannot be charged to FY 2023 RAISE funds. Likewise, costs 
incurred under an FTA Letter of No Prejudice under Chapter 53 of title 49 U.S.C. before the DOT announces that a 
project is selected for a FY 2023 RAISE award, cannot be charged to FY 2023 RAISE funds. 

44

Item 10.



11 
 

awarded with FY 2023 Appropriations Act funding to be liquidated by the same date of 

September 30, 2032. As part of the review and selection process described in Section E.2., DOT 

will consider a project’s likelihood of being ready to proceed with an obligation of RAISE grant 

funds within the timeline described above. DOT does not have the authority to extend the BIL 

deadlines. 

5. Previous RAISE/BUILD/TIGER Awards  

Recipients of RAISE/BUILD/TIGER grants may apply for funding to support additional 

phases of a project previously awarded funds in the RAISE/BUILD/TIGER program.  However, 

to be competitive, the applicant should demonstrate the extent to which the previously funded 

project phase has met estimated project schedules and budget, as well as the ability to realize the 

benefits expected for the project. A previous RAISE/BUILD/TIGER award, or application, does 

not affect competitiveness under the FY 2023 RAISE competition. 

C. Eligibility Information 

To be selected for a RAISE grant, an applicant must be an Eligible Applicant and the project 

must be an Eligible Project. 

1. Eligible Applicants 

Eligible Applicants for RAISE grants are: States and the District of Columbia; any territory 

or possession of the United States; a unit of local government; a public agency or publicly 

chartered authority established by one or more States; a special purpose district or public 

authority with a transportation function, including a port authority; a Federally recognized Indian 

Tribe or a consortium of such Indian Tribes; a transit agency; and a multi-State or 

multijurisdictional group of entities that are separately eligible. Federal agencies are not eligible 

applicants for the FY 2023 RAISE program.  

45

Item 10.



12 
 

Multiple States or jurisdictions may submit a joint application and should identify a lead 

applicant as the primary point of contact and also identify the primary recipient of the award. 

Joint applications should include a description of the roles and responsibilities of each applicant.  

 DOT expects that the eligible applicant that submits the application will administer and 

deliver the project. If the applicant seeks a transfer of the award to another agency, that intention 

should be made clear in the application and a letter of support from the otherwise eligible, 

designated entity should be included in the application. 

2. Cost Sharing or Matching 

The Federal share of the costs of an eligible project carried out using a grant provided under 

the RAISE grant program shall not exceed 80 percent unless the project is located in a rural area, 

a historically disadvantaged community (HDC), or an area of persistent poverty (APP). Urban 

area and rural area are defined in Section C.3.ii of this notice. HDCs and APPs are defined in 

Section C.3.iii.  

Applicants should use the following equation when determining the cost share for their 

project:  

(𝑅𝑅𝑅𝑅𝑅𝑅𝑅𝑅𝑅𝑅 𝐺𝐺𝐺𝐺𝐺𝐺𝐺𝐺𝐺𝐺 𝑅𝑅𝑅𝑅𝑅𝑅𝑅𝑅𝑅𝑅𝑅𝑅𝐺𝐺 + 𝑂𝑂𝐺𝐺ℎ𝑅𝑅𝐺𝐺 𝐹𝐹𝑅𝑅𝐹𝐹𝑅𝑅𝐺𝐺𝐺𝐺𝐹𝐹 𝐹𝐹𝑅𝑅𝐺𝐺𝐹𝐹𝑅𝑅)
𝑇𝑇𝑇𝑇𝐺𝐺𝐺𝐺𝐹𝐹 𝑃𝑃𝐺𝐺𝑇𝑇𝑃𝑃𝑅𝑅𝑃𝑃𝐺𝐺 𝐶𝐶𝑇𝑇𝑅𝑅𝐺𝐺

= 𝐹𝐹𝑅𝑅𝐹𝐹𝑅𝑅𝐺𝐺𝐺𝐺𝐹𝐹 𝐶𝐶𝑇𝑇𝑅𝑅𝐺𝐺 𝑅𝑅ℎ𝐺𝐺𝐺𝐺𝑅𝑅 

 

Federal cost share may not exceed 80 percent for urban projects that are not located in an 

APP or HDC.  

For the RAISE Program, Total Project Cost means the sum of future eligible Federal and 

Non-Federal costs that have not yet been incurred. This cannot include any previously incurred 

costs.  

46

Item 10.



13 
 

DOT does not use an applicant’s cost share when evaluating applications on merit.  The 

Department considers an applicant’s cost share during the evaluation and selection process only 

to confirm eligibility for urban projects that are not located in an APP or HDC. 

Non-Federal sources include State funds originating from programs funded by State revenue, 

local funds originating from State or local revenue-funded programs, or private funds.  The BIL 

also allows for the following Federal funds to be considered “non-Federal” for the purpose of the 

RAISE program: (A) tribal transportation program funds under section 202 of title 23; (B) 

Federal lands transportation program funds under section 203 of title 23; (C) TIFIA program 

funds (as defined in section 601(a) of title 23); and (D) Railroad Rehabilitation and Improvement 

Financing Program under chapter 224. Toll credits under 23 U.S.C. 120(i) are considered a 

Federal source under the RAISE program and, therefore, cannot be used to satisfy the statutory 

cost sharing requirement of a RAISE award. Unless otherwise authorized by statute, funds used 

to satisfy the non-Federal cost-share requirements of a different Federal program may not be 

counted as the non-Federal cost-share for both the RAISE grant and another Federal grant 

program. DOT will not consider previously incurred costs or previously expended or 

encumbered funds towards the non-Federal cost-share requirement for any project.  Non-Federal 

cost-share funds are subject to the same Federal requirements described in Section F.2. as 

awarded funds.  If repaid from non-Federal sources, Federal credit assistance is considered non-

Federal share. 

See Section D.2.iii for information about documenting cost sharing in the application. 

For each project that receives a RAISE grant award, the terms of the award will require the 

recipient to complete the project using at least the level of non-Federal funding that was 

specified in the application. If the actual costs of the project are greater than the costs estimated 

in the application, the recipient will be responsible for increasing the non-Federal contribution. If 

47

Item 10.



14 
 

the actual costs of the project are less than the costs estimated in the application, DOT will 

generally reduce the Federal contribution to ensure federal cost share limitations are met. 

3. Other 

i. Eligible Projects  

(a) Capital Projects 

Eligible projects for RAISE grants are surface transportation capital projects within the 

United States or any territory or possession of the United States that are: (1) highway, bridge, or 

other road projects eligible under title 23, United States Code; (2) public transportation projects  

eligible under chapter 53 of title 49, United States Code; (3) passenger and freight rail 

transportation projects; (4) port infrastructure investments (including inland port infrastructure 

and land ports of entry); (5) the surface transportation components of an airport project eligible 

for assistance under part B of subtitle VII of title 49, United States Code;8 (6) intermodal 

projects; (7) projects to replace or rehabilitate a culvert or prevent stormwater runoff for the 

purpose of improving habitat for aquatic species while advancing the goals of the RAISE 

program; (8) projects investing in surface transportation facilities that are located on Tribal land 

and for which title or maintenance responsibility is vested in the Federal Government; and (9) 

any other surface transportation infrastructure project that the Secretary considers to be necessary 

to advance the goals of the program.9  

The Secretary considers the following projects necessary to advance the goals of the 

program, and therefore eligible: public road and non-motorized projects that are not otherwise 

 
8 Eligible surface transportation components of eligible airport projects are those projects listed in “Appendix P: 
Road and Surface Transportation Projects” of the Airport Improvement Program (AIP) handbook, available at 
https://www.faa.gov/airports/aip/aip_handbook/?Chapter=Appendix#PP00. For more details on airport project 
eligibility, please see the Frequently Asked Questions at https://www.transportation.gov/RAISEgrants/raise-
application-faqs.  
9 Please note that DOT may award a RAISE grant to pay for the surface transportation components of a broader 
project that has non-surface transportation components, and applicants are encouraged to apply for RAISE grants to 
pay for the surface transportation components of these projects. 

48

Item 10.

https://www.faa.gov/airports/aip/aip_handbook/?Chapter=Appendix#PP00
https://www.transportation.gov/RAISEgrants/raise-application-faqs
https://www.transportation.gov/RAISEgrants/raise-application-faqs


15 
 

eligible under title 23, United States Code; transit-oriented development projects; mobility on-

demand projects that expand access and reduce transportation cost burden; and intermodal 

projects.  

Under the FY 2023 RAISE program, if an application includes right-of-way acquisition, the 

project will be considered a capital project. Projects that include right-of-way acquisition should 

include a timeline for construction. 

The following projects are not considered necessary to advance the goals of the program, 

and, therefore, they are ineligible: school bus electrification and broadband deployment as a 

standalone project.  Improvements to Federally owned facilities are ineligible under the FY 2023 

RAISE program, unless they are projects investing in surface transportation facilities that are 

located on Tribal land and for which title or maintenance responsibility is vested in the Federal 

Government. If a project type is not described as explicitly eligible or ineligible above, then 

applicants should explain in their application why the project is necessary to advance the goals of 

the program, and the Department will determine eligibility on a case-by-case basis. 

Research, demonstration, or pilot projects are eligible only if they will result in long-term, 

permanent surface transportation infrastructure that has independent utility as defined in Section 

C.3.iv 

(b) Planning Projects  

Activities eligible for funding under RAISE planning grants are related to the planning, 

preparation, or design— for example environmental analysis, equity analysis, community 

engagement, feasibility studies, benefit-cost analysis, and other pre-construction activities—of 

eligible surface transportation capital projects described in Section C.3.i.(a) and may not result in 

construction with RAISE FY 2023 funding.  

49

Item 10.



16 
 

In addition, activities eligible for RAISE planning grants include those related to 

multidisciplinary projects or regional planning, such as: (1) development of master plans, 

comprehensive plans, transportation corridor plans, and integrated economic development, land 

use, housing, and transportation plans; (2) zero emissions plan for transit fleet; (3) planning 

activities related to the development of a multimodal freight corridor, including those that seek to 

reduce conflicts with residential areas and with passenger and non-motorized traffic; (4) planning 

activities related to zero emissions goods movement; (5) development of port and regional port 

planning, including State-wide or multi-port planning within a single jurisdiction or region; and 

(6) risk assessments and planning to identify vulnerabilities and address the transportation 

system’s ability to withstand probable occurrence or recurrence of an emergency or major 

disaster.  

As stated above, projects that include right-of-way acquisition are capital projects and, 

therefore, not eligible for RAISE planning grants. 

ii. Rural/Urban Definition 

For purposes of this notice, a project is designated as urban if it is located within (or on the 

boundary of) a Census-designated urbanized area10 that had a population greater than 200,000 in 

the 2010 Census.11  If a project is located outside a Census-designated urbanized area with a 

population greater than 200,000, it is designated as a rural project. Rural and urban definitions 

differ in some other DOT programs, including TIFIA.    

 
10 Lists of 2010 UAs as defined by the Census Bureau are available on the Census Bureau website at 
https://www.census.gov/geographies/reference-maps/2010/geo/2010-census-urban-areas.html.    
11 For the purpose of this NOFO, the definition of urban and rural is based on the 2010 Census-designated urbanized 
areas. The Department is required by the BIL to use the most recent decennial census information; however 
urbanized areas have not been designated for the 2020 Census at the time of this NOFO publication. See 
https://www.transportation.gov/RAISEgrants/urbanized-areas for a list of 2010 Census-designated UAs.   

50

Item 10.

https://www.transportation.gov/RAISEgrants/urbanized-areas


17 
 

A project located in both an urban and a rural area will be designated as urban if the majority 

of the project’s costs will be spent in urban areas.  Conversely, a project located in both an urban 

area and a rural area will be designated as rural if the majority of the project’s costs will be spent 

in rural areas. For RAISE planning grants, the location of the project being planned, prepared, or 

designed will be used for the urban or rural designation. 

This definition affects four aspects of the program: (1) not more than 50 percent (or $1.15 

billion) of the funds provided for RAISE grants are to be used for projects in rural areas; (2) not 

more than 50 percent (or $1.15 billion) of the funds provided for RAISE grants are to be used for 

projects in urban areas; (3) for a capital project in a rural area, the minimum award is $1 million, 

while the minimum capital award for urban areas is $5 million; and (4) the Secretary may 

increase the Federal share above 80 percent to pay for the eligible costs of a project in a rural 

area.  

iii. Areas of Persistent Poverty and Historically Disadvantaged 

Communities 

The Secretary may increase the Federal cost share above 80 percent for projects located 

in an Area of Persistent Poverty or a Historically Disadvantaged Community. Additionally, DOT 

must award at least $35 million for projects located in historically disadvantaged communities or 

areas of persistent poverty.  

A project located in both (1) APP or HDC areas and (2) areas that are neither APP nor 

HDC areas will be designated as APP or HDC if the majority of the project’s costs will be spent 

in the area that qualifies as APP or HDC.  For RAISE planning grants, the location of the project 

being planned, prepared, or designed will be used for the APP and HDC designations. 

(a) Areas of Persistent Poverty means: (1) any county that has consistently had greater 

than or equal to 20 percent of the population living in poverty during the 30-year period 

51

Item 10.



18 
 

preceding November 15, 2021, as measured by the 1990 and 200012 decennial census and the 

most recent annual Small Area Income Poverty Estimates as estimated by the Bureau of the 

census;13 (2) any census tract with a poverty rate of at least 20 percent as measured by the 2014-

2018 5-year data series available from the American Community Survey of the Bureau of the 

Census;14 or (3) any territory or possession of the United States. A county satisfies this definition 

only if 20 percent of its population was living in poverty in all three of the listed datasets: (a) the 

1990 decennial census; (b) the 2000 decennial census; and (c) the 2021 Small Area Income 

Poverty Estimates.15 DOT will list all counties and census tracts that meet this definition for 

Areas of Persistent Poverty on the RAISE website at 

www.transportation.gov/RAISEgrants/raise-app-hdc.  

 (b) Historically Disadvantaged Communities – DOT has developed a definition of 

Historically Disadvantaged Communities as part of its implementation of the Justice40 Initiative 

and will use that definition for the purpose of this Notice. Consistent with OMB’s Interim 

Guidance for the Justice40 Initiative,16 Historically Disadvantaged Communities include (a) 

certain qualifying census tracts, (b) any Tribal land, or (c) any territory or possession of the 

United States. DOT is providing a list of census tracts that meet the definition of Historically 

Disadvantaged Communities, as well as a mapping tool to assist applicants in identifying 

whether a project is located in a Historically Disadvantaged Community, available at 

www.transportation.gov/RAISEgrants/raise-app-hdc.  

 
12 See https://www.census.gov/data/tables/time-series/dec/census-poverty.html for county dataset. 
13  
14 See 
https://data.census.gov/cedsci/table?q=ACSST1Y2018.S1701&tid=ACSST5Y2018.S1701&hidePreview=false for 
2014-2018 five year data series from the American Community Survey 
15 On December 15, 2022, the 2021 Small Area Income Poverty Estimates (SAIPE) Dataset was published at 
https://www.census.gov/data/datasets/2021/demo/saipe/2021-state-and-county.html. The Department is updating its 
APP resources based on the 2021 SAIPE data.   
16 https://www.whitehouse.gov/wp-content/uploads/2021/07/M-21-28.pdf  

52

Item 10.

https://www.transportation.gov/RAISEgrants/raise-app-hdc
http://www.transportation.gov/RAISEgrants/raise-app-hdc
https://www.census.gov/data/tables/time-series/dec/census-poverty.html
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fdata.census.gov%2Fcedsci%2Ftable%3Fq%3DACSST1Y2018.S1701%26tid%3DACSST5Y2018.S1701%26hidePreview%3Dfalse&data=04%7C01%7Ckim.bathrick%40dot.gov%7C596452e5274e4da5eab308d8ee042260%7Cc4cd245b44f04395a1aa3848d258f78b%7C0%7C0%7C637521048857210852%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=4JSzu%2BbHGqSNnf8jB1LjZM6dvqgXmktppYyIQ2ONrUc%3D&reserved=0
https://www.whitehouse.gov/wp-content/uploads/2021/07/M-21-28.pdf


19 
 

iv. Project Components  

An application may describe a project that contains more than one component and may 

describe components that may be carried out by parties other than the applicant.  DOT expects, 

and will impose requirements on fund recipients to ensure, that all components included in an 

application will be delivered as part of the RAISE project, regardless of whether a component 

includes Federal funding. The status of each component should be clearly described (for 

example, in the project schedule). DOT may award funds for a component, instead of the larger 

project, if that component: (1) independently meets minimum award amounts described in 

Section B and all eligibility requirements described in Section C; (2) independently aligns well 

with the selection criteria specified in Section E.1; and (3) meets National Environmental Policy 

Act (NEPA) requirements with respect to independent utility. Independent utility means that the 

component will represent a transportation improvement that is usable and represents a reasonable 

expenditure of DOT funds even if no other improvements are made in the area and will be ready 

for intended use upon completion of that component's construction.  All project components that 

are presented together in a single application must demonstrate a relationship or connection 

between them. See Section D.2. for Required Approvals.   

Applicants should be aware that, depending upon the relationship between project 

components and applicable Federal law, DOT funding of only some project components may 

make other project components subject to Federal requirements as described in Section F.2.     

DOT strongly encourages applicants to identify in their applications the project 

components that have independent utility and separately detail costs and requested RAISE grant 

funding for those components.  If the application identifies one or more independent project 

components, the application should clearly identify how each independent component addresses 

53

Item 10.



20 
 

selection criteria and produces benefits on its own, in addition to describing how the full 

proposal, of which the independent component is a part addresses, selection criteria. 

v.  Application Limit  

Each lead applicant may submit no more than three applications.  Unrelated project 

components should not be bundled in a single application for the purpose of adhering to the 

limit.  If a lead applicant submits more than three applications as the lead applicant, only the first 

three received will be considered.  

D. Application and Submission Information 

1. Address to Request Application Package 

Instructions for submitting applications can be found at 

https://www.transportation.gov/RAISEgrants/apply along with specific instructions for the forms 

and attachments required for submission. 

2. Content and Form of Application Submission 

The application must include the Standard Form 424 (Application for Federal 

Assistance),  the “FY 2023 RAISE  Project Information Form” available at 

www.transportation.gov/RAISEgrants/raise-info, and individual application attachments as 

outlined in the table below. DOT expects the application will be submitted in the following 

order, using the following file names: 

Information File Name NOFO Section Page Limit 
SF-424  
 

SF-424 D.2 N/A 
Project Information Form (in 
Excel) 
 

FY 2023 RAISE Project 
Information Form D.2 N/A 

Project Description   Project Description D.2.i 5 pages 
Project Location File  Project Location File D.2.ii N/A 
Project Budget   Project Budget D.2.iii  5 pages 
Funding Commitment 
Documentation 
 

Funding Commitments D.2.iii.e N/A 

Merit Criteria  Merit Criteria Narrative D.2.iv and E.1.i 15 pages 

54

Item 10.

https://www.transportation.gov/RAISEgrants/apply
http://www.transportation.gov/RAISEgrants/raise-info


21 
 

Project Readiness   Project Readiness D.2.v and E.1.ii 5 pages 
Benefit-Cost Analysis Narrative 
(capital projects only) 
 

BCA Narrative D.2.vi and E.1. iii. N/A 

Benefit-Cost Analysis 
Calculations (capital projects 
only, could be in unlocked 
spreadsheet form) 
 

BCA Calculations D.2.vi. and E.1. iii. N/A 

Letters of Support (Optional) Letters Of Support D2.iv And E.1.i N/A 
 

DOT expects the application attachments/files be prepared with standard formatting 

preferences (a single-spaced document, using a standard 12-point font such as Times New 

Roman, with 1-inch margins), and documents should be submitted in PDF, unless otherwise 

specified (i.e., project information form should be in Excel, and the BCA calculations could be 

submitted in Excel). 

Instructions for each application file are below.  

The application files should collectively include all information necessary for DOT to determine 

that the project satisfies project requirements described in Sections B and C and to assess the 

selection criteria specified in Section E.1. DOT expects applications to be complete upon 

submission. DOT may ask any applicant to supplement data in its application but is not required 

to do so. Unsupported claims related to the selection criteria (merits, project readiness, economic 

benefits, etc.) will negatively affect competitiveness of the application, as described throughout 

Section E.2.  

Supporting documents may be attached in addition to the listed files, but evaluators are 

not required to review supporting documents as part of the review described in Section E.  DOT 

expects application files to include the following detailed information 

55

Item 10.



22 
 

i. Project Description  

This file must provide a description of the project that is to be planned or constructed and 

should include a detailed statement of work that focuses on the technical and engineering aspects 

of the project, the current design status of the project, the transportation challenges that the 

project is intended to address, and how the project is expected address those challenges.  This file 

may also discuss the project’s history, including a description of any previously completed 

components.  The applicant may use this file to place the project into a broader context of other 

transportation infrastructure investments being pursued by the project sponsor.   

This file should also describe the project location in a narrative fashion, including a 

detailed geographical description of the proposed project and map(s) of the project’s location, to 

supplement the geographic project map provided in the project location file. The project location 

description should narratively identify: 

(a) whether the project is located in an Area of Persistent Poverty, including the 

relevant County and/or census tract(s);  

(b) whether the project is located in a Historically Disadvantaged Community, 

including the relevant census tract(s);  

(c) the Census-designated urbanized area in which the project is located, if relevant;  

ii. Project Location File 

Applicants should submit one of the following file types with project location identification. 

This will be used to verify the urban/rural designation and the APP/HDC designations described 

in the Project Description file. These location designations, together with budget information, 

could affect eligibility under the FY2023 RAISE grants program, as described in NOFO Section 

C. Therefore, accuracy in the location file is important. Acceptable file types are: Shapefile, 

56

Item 10.



23 
 

GEOJSON, KML/KMZ, or CSV. If an applicant needs to prepare one of these files, these are 

suggested instructions:  

1. Open a publicly available online mapping tool for example, (Google Earth or 

GEOJSON).  

2. Identify your project location. Use the tools to draw a line or make a point to 

represent the project area. The project area should include only the direct physical 

location of the infrastructure project; it should NOT include a broad service area or 

area of project impact. 

3. Export, save, and attach to your application one of the acceptable formats (Shapefile, 

GEOJSON, KML/KMZ, CSV) 

iii. Project Budget  

This file should describe the budget for the RAISE project (i.e., the project scope that 

includes RAISE funding and matching funding if required), including information about the 

degree of design completion (e.g., 30 percent design) for which the cost was estimated. 

Applicants should carefully consider the differing funding restrictions for the BIL funding and 

the FY 2023 Appropriations Act funding, which could affect competitiveness and are further 

described in Section B. If the budget presented in the application shows a grant request greater 

than $25 million, the application will be competing for only the FY 2023 Appropriations Act 

funding. This budget should not include any previously incurred expenses. The budget should 

show how each source of funds will be spent.  The budget should also show how each funding 

source will share in each major construction activity, and present that data in dollars and 

percentages. If applicable, the budget should identify Federal funds that have been previously 

authorized by a Federal agency. The budget should clearly identify any expenses expected to be 

incurred between time of award and obligation because these expenses are not eligible for 

57

Item 10.

https://earth.google.com/web/
https://geojson.io/


24 
 

reimbursement, as described in Section B.4, or for non-Federal funds, as described in Section 

C.2. The budget details should sufficiently demonstrate that the project satisfies the statutory 

cost-sharing/matching funds requirements described in Section C.2. At a minimum, the project 

budget should include:  

(a) Total Project Costs for the FY 2023 RAISE project (see Section 

C.2 for definition of Total Project Cost); 

(b) FY 2023 RAISE grant funding request; 

(c) Specific source, amount, and type (grant, loan, etc.), of funds to be 

used for eligible project costs;  

(d) Specific sources and amounts of non-Federal funds, if included, to 

be used for eligible project costs; 

(e) Documentation of funding commitments for those non-Federal and 

other Federal funds; and 

(f) If the project is located in two or more census tracts or is located 

only partially within an urbanized area, the budget needs to 

separate the costs between the various census tracts or areas 

designated as urban and rural. 

In addition to the information enumerated above, this section should provide complete 

information on how all project funds may be used.  For example, if a particular source of funds is 

available only after a condition is satisfied, the application should identify that condition and 

describe the applicant’s control over whether it is satisfied.  Similarly, if a particular source of 

funds is available for expenditure only during a fixed time period, the application should 

describe that restriction.  Complete information about project funds will ensure that DOT’s 

expectations for award execution align with any funding restrictions unrelated to DOT, even if 

58

Item 10.



25 
 

an award differs from the applicant’s request. Applicants are encouraged to include the following 

two tables below, filled out with project details:  

 

 

Table 1:  

 [Component 1] [Component 2] Total Funding 

Funding Source Funding 
Amount 

 Funding 
Amount 

 
 

RAISE Funds: [$XXX]  [$XXX]  [$XXX] 
Other Federal Funds: [$XXX]  [$XXX]  [$XXX] 
Non-Federal Funds: [$XXX]  [$XXX]  [$XXX] 
Total: [$XXX]  [$XXX]  [$XXX] 

If there is only a single component, remove “Component 2” column. If there are more than 2 components, add 
columns.  
 
 
Table 2:  

Census Tract(s) Project Costs per Census Tract  
[XX.XX] $ 
[XX.XX] $ 
[XX.XX] $ 
[XX.XX] $ 
[XX.XX] $ 
[XX.XX] $ 
[XX.XX] $ 
[XX.XX] $ 
[XX.XX] $ 
 Total Project Cost: $  

 
Add more rows for additional census tracts, if needed.  
 
DOT will use this table to determine which Census tracts include the majority of project costs in the context of 
making final APP and HDC designations.   
 
The total project cost listed in Tables 1 and 2 should match total project cost listed throughout the application 
materials. 
 

iv. Merit Criteria  

This narrative file should demonstrate how the project aligns with the statutory merit 

criteria described in Section E.1 of this notice.  DOT encourages applicants to address each 

59

Item 10.



26 
 

criterion. Insufficient information to assess any criterion will negatively impact the project 

rating. Applicants should note that merit reviewers will focus on this file and will not be required 

to reference the other files in the application package; therefore all relevant information to 

demonstrate alignment with the merit criteria as described in Section E.1.i should be included in 

this file. Applicants should describe the project merit criteria in the order in which they are 

described in the NOFO, and address each criterion separately. Guidance describing how DOT 

will evaluate projects against the Selection Criteria is in Section E.1 of this notice.  Applicants 

should review that section before considering how to organize their application.  

(a) Safety  

This section of the merit criteria application file should describe how the project aligns with 

the safety criterion described in Section E.1.i.(a) of this notice.   

(b) Environmental Sustainability  

This section of the merit criteria application file should describe how the project aligns with 

the environmental sustainability criterion described in Section E.1.i.(b) of this notice. 

(c) Quality of Life  

This section of the merit criteria application file should describe how the project aligns with 

the quality of life criterion described in Section E.1.i.(c) of this notice.   

(d) Improves Mobility and Community Connectivity 

This section of the merit criteria application file should describe how the project aligns with 

the mobility and community connectivity criterion described in Section E.1.i.(d) of this notice. 

(e) Economic Competitiveness and Opportunity 

This section of the merit criteria application file should describe how the project aligns with 

the economic competitiveness and opportunity criterion described in Section E.1.i.(e) of this 

notice. 

60

Item 10.



27 
 

(f) State of Good Repair 

This section of the merit criteria application file should describe how the project aligns with 

the state of good repair criterion described in Section E.1.i.(f) of this notice. 

(g) Partnership and Collaboration 

This section of the merit criteria application file should describe how the project aligns with 

the partnership and collaboration criterion described in Section E.1.i.(g) of this notice.  

(h) Innovation 

This section of the merit criteria application file should describe how the project aligns with 

the innovation criterion described in Section E.1.i.(h) of this notice.   

v. Project Readiness 

This file should include a detailed project schedule for all applications.  

Capital project applications that receive second-tier analysis17 will be reviewed for Project 

Readiness and assigned three separate readiness evaluation ratings: Environmental Risk 

Assessment, Technical Capacity Assessment, and Financial Completeness Assessment. 

Therefore, the Project Readiness file for capital project applications should include information 

that addresses the Environmental Risk Assessment and Technical Capacity Assessment 

considerations as described in Section E.1.ii.a and Section E.1.ii.b. The Financial Completeness 

Assessment will be based on information contained throughout the budget file of the application. 

Planning project applications that receive second-tier analysis will be reviewed for Project 

Readiness and assigned two evaluation ratings: Technical Capacity Assessment and Financial 

Completeness Assessment. Therefore, the Project Readiness file for planning project applications 

should include information that addresses the Technical Capacity Assessment considerations as 

 
17 The process for determining which applications receive second-tier analysis is described in Section E.2 of this 
notice. 

61

Item 10.



28 
 

described in Section E.1.ii.b. The Financial Completeness Assessment will be based on 

information contained throughout the budget section of the application. Environmental Risk 

Assessment will not be reviewed for planning applications, so planning applicants do not need to 

provide information related to this criterion.  

The Project Readiness file should include the following sections: 

(a) Environmental Risk (capital projects only) 

This section of the application should include sufficient information for DOT to evaluate 

whether the project is reasonably expected to begin construction in a timely manner consistent 

with all applicable local, State, and Federal requirements. To assist DOT’s project environmental 

risk review, the applicant should provide the information requested on project schedule, required 

approvals and permits, NEPA class of action and status, public involvement, right-of-way 

acquisition plans, risk and mitigation strategies, each of which is described in greater detail in the 

following sections. Applicants are not required to follow the specific format described here, but 

this organization, which addresses each relevant aspect of environmental risk, promotes a clear 

discussion that assists project evaluators. To minimize redundant information in the application, 

DOT encourages applicants to cross-reference from this section of their application to relevant 

substantive information in other sections of the application. 

The guidance here is about what information applicants should provide and how the 

applicant should organize their application.  Guidance describing how DOT will evaluate 

environmental risk is described in Section E.1.ii of this notice.  Applicants should review that 

section when considering how to organize their application.  

i. Detailed Project Schedule 

All applications should include a detailed project schedule that identifies all major 

milestones.  For capital project applications, examples of such milestones include State and local 

62

Item 10.



29 
 

planning approvals (e.g., programming on the Statewide Transportation Improvement Program); 

start and completion of NEPA and other Federal environmental reviews and approvals including 

permitting; design completion; right-of-way acquisition; approval of plans, specifications and 

estimates; procurement; State and local approvals; public involvement; project partnership and 

implementation agreements, including agreements with railroads; and construction.  For planning 

projects, examples of milestones may include start dates, schedule for public engagement and 

completion dates. The schedule should be sufficiently detailed to demonstrate that:  

1. all necessary activities will be complete to allow RAISE grant funds to be 

obligated18 sufficiently in advance of the administrative deadline (June 30, 

2027),19 and that any unexpected delays will not put the funds at risk of 

expiring before they are obligated; 

2. the capital project can begin construction upon obligation of grant funds and 

that those funds will be spent expeditiously once construction starts, with all 

funds expended by September 30, 2032;  

3. all real property and right-of-way acquisition will be completed in a timely 

manner in accordance with 49 CFR part 24, 23 CFR part 710, and other 

applicable legal requirements or a statement that no right-of-way acquisition 

is necessary; and 

4. the applicant has meaningfully sought community input through public 

involvement, particularly engaging environmental justice communities or 

 
18 Obligation occurs when a selected applicant and DOT enter into a written grant agreement after the applicant has 
satisfied applicable administrative requirements, including transportation planning and environmental review 
requirements. 
19 The statutory obligation deadline is September 30, 2027. The Department assesses risk against an earlier deadline 
of June 30, 2027 to allow time to complete administrative processing and address challenges before the statutory 
deadline. 

63

Item 10.



30 
 

disadvantaged communities that may be affected by the project where 

applicable.  

ii. Required Approvals 

1. Environmental Permits and Reviews.  The capital project application should 

demonstrate receipt (or reasonably anticipated receipt) of all environmental 

approvals and permits necessary for the project to proceed to construction 

on the timeline specified in the project schedule and necessary to meet the 

statutory obligation deadline, including satisfaction of all Federal, State and 

local requirements and completion of the NEPA process.  Specifically, the 

application should include:  

A. Information about the NEPA status of the project.  If the NEPA process is 

complete, an applicant should indicate the date of completion, and provide a 

website link or other reference to the final Categorical Exclusion, Finding of 

No Significant Impact, Record of Decision, and any other NEPA documents 

prepared. If the NEPA process is underway, but not complete, the 

application should detail the type of NEPA review underway, where the 

project is in the process, and indicate the anticipated date of completion of 

all milestones and of the final NEPA determination. If the last agency action 

with respect to NEPA documents occurred more than three years before the 

application date, the applicant should describe why the project has been 

delayed and include a proposed approach for verifying and, if necessary, 

updating this material in accordance with applicable NEPA requirements. 

B. Information on reviews, approvals, and permits by other agencies.  An 

application should indicate whether the proposed project requires reviews or 

64

Item 10.



31 
 

approval actions by other agencies,20 indicate the status of such actions, and 

provide detailed information about the status of those reviews or approvals 

and should demonstrate compliance with any other applicable Federal, State 

or local requirements, and when such approvals are expected. Applicants 

should provide a website link or other reference to copies of any reviews, 

approvals, and permits prepared.  

C. Environmental studies or other documents, preferably through a website 

link, that describe in detail known project impacts, and possible mitigation 

for those impacts.  

D. A description of discussions with the appropriate DOT operating 

administration field or headquarters office regarding the project’s 

compliance with NEPA and other applicable Federal environmental reviews 

and approvals. 

E. If applicable, for capital project right-of-way acquisition plans, with detailed 

schedule and compensation plan. 

F. A description of public engagement about the project that has occurred, 

proactively inclusive of historically disadvantaged communities, including 

details on compliance with environmental justice requirements and the 

degree to which public comments and commitments have been integrated 

into project development and design. Right-of-Way acquisition plans should 

be provided if applicable. 

2. State and Local Approvals.  The applicant should demonstrate receipt of 

 
20 Projects that may impact protected resources such as wetlands, species habitat, cultural or historic resources 
require review and approval by Federal and State agencies with jurisdiction over those resources.   

65

Item 10.



32 
 

State and local approvals on which the capital project depends, such as State 

and local environmental and planning approvals and Statewide 

Transportation Improvement Program (STIP) or Transportation 

Improvement Program (TIP) funding.   

3. Federal Transportation Requirements Affecting State and Local Planning. 

The planning requirements applicable to the relevant operating 

administration apply to all RAISE grant projects,21 including projects 

located at airport facilities.22 Applicants should demonstrate that a project 

that is required to be included in the relevant State, metropolitan, and local 

planning documents has been or will be included in such documents.  If the 

project is not included in a relevant planning document at the time the 

 
21 Under 23 U.S.C. 134 and 135, all projects requiring an action by FHWA must be in the applicable plan and 
programming documents (e.g., metropolitan transportation plan, transportation improvement program (TIP) and 
statewide transportation improvement program (STIP)). Further, in air quality non-attainment and maintenance 
areas, all regionally significant projects, regardless of the funding source, must be included in the conforming 
metropolitan transportation plan and TIP. Inclusion in the STIP is required under certain circumstances. To the 
extent a project is required to be on a metropolitan transportation plan, TIP, and/or STIP, it will not receive a RAISE 
grant until it is included in such plans. Plans that do not currently include the awarded RAISE project can be 
amended by the State and MPO. Projects that are not required to be in long range transportation plans, STIPs, and 
TIPs will not need to be included in such plans to receive a RAISE grant.  Port, freight rail, and intermodal projects 
are not required to be on the State Rail Plans called for in the Passenger Rail Investment and Improvement Act of 
2008, or in a State Freight Plan (unless National Highway Freight Program funding is identified as a source of other 
federal funding – States may modify their Freight Investment Plan of a State Freight Plan after award of 
discretionary grant funding; non-State applicants would need a letter from the State indicating intent to add to State 
Freight Plan for use of NHFP funding pursuant to selection). However, applicants seeking funding for freight 
projects are encouraged to demonstrate that they have done sufficient planning to ensure that projects fit into a 
prioritized list of capital needs and are consistent with long-range goals. Means of demonstrating this consistency 
would include whether the project is in a TIP or a State Freight Plan that conforms to the requirements 49 U.S.C. 
70202 prior to the start of construction. The Port Planning and Investment Took Kit is available at 
https://www.maritime.dot.gov/grants-finances/marine-highways/port-planning-and-investment-toolkit-marine-
highway-projects-module  
22 Projects at or near airports must be compatible with any FAA-approved Airport Layout Plan for each associated 
airport, applicable airport safety and airspace standards, including aeronautical surfaces associated with the landing 
and takeoff of aircraft at the airport, 14 CFR Part 77, and compatible land-use.  Additionally, projects at an airport: 
must be consistent with established Sponsor Grant Assurances, including (but not limited to) requirements for non 
exclusive-use aeronautical facilities, consultation with users, consistency with local plans including development of 
the area surrounding the airport, and consideration of the interest of nearby communities, among others; and must 
not adversely affect the continued and unhindered access of passengers to the terminal. 
 

66

Item 10.

https://www.maritime.dot.gov/grants-finances/marine-highways/port-planning-and-investment-toolkit-marine-highway-projects-module
https://www.maritime.dot.gov/grants-finances/marine-highways/port-planning-and-investment-toolkit-marine-highway-projects-module


33 
 

application is submitted, the applicant should submit a statement from the 

appropriate planning agency that actions are underway to include the project 

in the relevant planning document. To the extent possible, freight projects 

should be included in a State Freight Plan and supported by a State Freight 

Advisory Committee (49 U.S.C. 70201, 70202), if these exist. Applicants 

should provide links or other documentation supporting this consideration 

such as letters of support from the State DOT if the project is intended to be 

included in the State Freight Plan, or results from application of the FHWA 

Freight Mobility Tool 

(https://ops.fhwa.dot.gov/freight/freight_analysis/mobility_trends/index.htm

).  

iii. Assessment of Project Risks and Mitigation Strategies 

Project risks, such as procurement delays, environmental uncertainties, increases 

in real estate acquisition costs, uncommitted local match, unavailability of vehicles that 

either comply with Federal Motor Vehicle Safety Standards or are exempt from Federal 

Motor Vehicle Safety Standards in a manner that allows for their legal acquisition and 

deployment, unavailability of domestically manufactured equipment, or lack of 

legislative approval, affect the likelihood of successful project start and completion. The 

applicant should provide a public involvement plan demonstrating meaningful 

engagement of the community affected by the project, to include environmental justice 

communities or disadvantaged communities, where applicable. The applicant should 

identify all material risks to the project and the strategies that the lead applicant and any 

project partners have undertaken or will undertake to mitigate those risks.  The applicant 

67

Item 10.



34 
 

should assess the greatest risks to the project and identify how the project parties will 

mitigate those risks. 

If an applicant anticipates pursuing a waiver for relevant domestic preference 

laws, the applicant should describe steps that have been or will be taken to maximize the 

use of domestic goods, products, and materials in constructing its project.  To the extent 

the applicant is unfamiliar with the Federal program, the applicant should contact the 

appropriate DOT operating administration field or headquarters offices, as found in 

contact information at www.transportation.gov/RAISEgrants, for information on the pre-

requisite steps to obligate Federal funds in order to ensure that their project schedule is 

reasonable and that there are no risks of delays in satisfying Federal requirements. 

For more information on how Capital applications will be evaluated for Environmental 

Risk, see Section E.1.ii.a of this NOFO. 

(b) Technical Capacity (capital and planning projects) 

All applications should include a section in the Project Readiness file that describes their 

Technical Capacity to deliver the project as described in Section E.1.ii.b of this NOFO.  

vi. Economic Analysis (Benefit-Cost Analysis)  

This section describes the recommended approach for the completion and submission of a 

benefit-cost analysis (BCA) narrative and calculation file for capital projects only. Applicants 

should also review DOT’s detailed guidance on how to conduct a BCA, which is available on the 

RAISE grant program website (see www.transportation.gov/RAISEgrants/additional-guidance).  

The purpose of the BCA is to enable DOT to evaluate the project’s cost-effectiveness by 

comparing its expected benefits to its expected costs, relative to a no-build scenario. Capital 

project applicants should provide a Benefit-Cost Analysis narrative description of their analysis 

as well as the calculation or analysis files used for their BCA (such as unlocked spreadsheet 

68

Item 10.

http://www.transportation.gov/BUILDgrants
http://www.transportation.gov/BUILDgrants/additional-guidance


35 
 

files). The BCA narrative should carefully document the assumptions and methodology used to 

produce the analysis, including a description of the baseline, the sources of data used to project 

the outcomes of the project, and the values of key input parameters. The spreadsheets and 

technical memos should present the calculations in sufficient detail and transparency to allow the 

analysis to be reproduced by DOT evaluators. 

Any benefits claimed for the project, both quantified and unquantified, should be clearly 

tied to the expected outcomes of the project. While benefits should be quantified wherever 

possible, applicants may also describe other categories of benefits in the BCA that are more 

difficult to quantify and/or value in economic terms. The BCA narrative should include, at a 

minimum, a description of the benefits and costs to be monetized. Applicants may also provide a 

table similar to the one shown below summarizing the impacts of the project and how those 

impacts would translate into expected benefits. This is shown as an example only: 

Current 
Status/Baseline and 
Problem to be 
Addressed 

Change to Baseline Example Impacts 

A freeway divides two 
neighborhoods 

A new street will be constructed 
to connect neighborhoods on 
each side of the freeway 

Reduced travel time for 
pedestrians and cyclists by X miles 
per day due to a more direct 
route, as well as reduced 
emissions, vehicle operating 
costs, and travel time for vehicle 
occupants by lowering VMT by Y 
miles per year 

A roadway with a high 
number of pedestrian 
fatalities has no 
sidewalks or marked 
crosswalks 

Sidewalks, high visibility 
crosswalks, and upgraded lighting 
will be added to the roadway 

Reduced pedestrian fatalities and 
injuries by X and Y per year, 
respectively, as well as amenity 
benefits of wider sidewalks for Z 
daily pedestrian trips 

 
3. Unique Entity Identifier and System for Award Management (SAM) 

Each applicant must: 1) be registered in SAM before submitting its application; 2) 

provide a valid unique entity identifier in its application; and 3) continue to maintain an active 

SAM registration with current information at all times during which it has an active Federal 

69

Item 10.



36 
 

award or an application or plan under consideration by a Federal awarding agency.  DOT may 

not make a RAISE grant to an applicant until the applicant has complied with all applicable 

unique entity identifier and SAM requirements and, if an applicant has not fully complied with 

the requirements by the time DOT is ready to make a RAISE grant, DOT may determine that the 

applicant is not qualified to receive a RAISE grant and use that determination as a basis for 

making a RAISE grant to another applicant. 

4. Submission Dates and Times 

Applications must be submitted through Grants.gov by 11:59:59 PM Eastern on February 28, 

2023. Grants.gov attaches a time stamp to each application at the time that submission is 

complete. Applications with a time stamp after the deadline will not be considered. The 

Department does not accept applications via mailed paper, fax machine, email, or other means.  

To submit an application through Grants.gov, applicants must:  

(1) Obtain a Unique Entity Identifier (UEI) number;23  

(2) Register with the System for Award Management (SAM) at www.SAM.gov;  

(3) Create a Grants.gov username and password; and  

(4) The E-Business Point of Contact (POC) at the applicant’s organization must 

respond to the registration email from Grants.gov and login at Grants.gov to authorize 

the applicant as the Authorized Organization Representative (AOR). Please note that 

there can be more than one AOR for an organization. 

Please note that the SAM registration process takes a minimum of 2 weeks to complete.  Failure 

to register for SAM or comply with Grants.gov applicant requirements in a timely manner will 

 
23 On April 4, 2022 the Federal government stopped using the Data Universal Numbering System (DUNS) number 
to uniquely identify entities. Entities doing business with the Federal government must use a Unique Entity 
Identifier (UEI) created in SAM.gov. If your entity is currently registered in SAM.gov, your UEI has already been 
assigned and is viewable in SAM.gov. This includes inactive registrations. 

70

Item 10.

http://www.sam.gov/


37 
 

not be considered for exceptions to the submission requirements and deadline. The Department is 

not able to assist with technical issues related to Grants.gov or SAM registration. For information 

and instruction on each of these processes, please see instructions at 

http://www.grants.gov/web/grants/applicants/applicant-faqs.html. If applicants experience 

difficulties at any point during the registration or application process, please call the Grants.gov 

Customer Service Support Hotline at 1-800-518-4726.   

5. Other Submission Requirements 

i. Submission Location 

Applications must be submitted to Grants.gov. The Department does not accept 

applications via mailed paper, fax machine, email, or other means. 

ii. Consideration of Applications 

Only applicants who comply with all submission deadlines described in this notice and 

electronically submit valid, on-time applications through Grants.gov will be eligible for award.   

iii. Late Applications 

Any applications that Grants.gov time stamps after 11:59:59 PM on February 28, 2023 will not 

be accepted. Applicants are strongly encouraged to make submissions days, if not weeks, in 

advance of the deadline, and applicants facing technical issues are advised to contact the 

Grants.gov helpdesk well in advance of the deadline.  

iv. Compliance with Section 508 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 

The Department encourages applicants to submit documents that are compliant with 

Section 508 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973. Section 508 guidelines are available at 

https://www.access-board.gov/ict/.  

71

Item 10.

http://www.grants.gov/web/grants/applicants/applicant-faqs.html
https://www.access-board.gov/ict/


38 
 

E. Application Review Information 

1. Criteria 

This section specifies the criteria that DOT will use to evaluate applications. The 

Department will review merit criteria for all applications.  A subset of competitive capital 

applications (described in Section E.2) will also receive second-tier analysis consisting of three 

Project Readiness reviews (Environmental Risk Assessment, Technical Capacity Assessment, 

and Financial Completeness Assessment) and an Economic (benefit-cost) Analysis. A subset of 

competitive planning applications (described in Section E.2) that receive second-tier analysis 

will be reviewed for two Project Readiness areas (Technical Capacity Assessment and Financial 

Completeness Assessment). Environmental Risk Assessment and Economic (benefit-cost) 

Analysis will not be reviewed for planning applications.  

The Department does not consider cost share (the amount of non-Federal 

contribution) as a selection criterion or a competitiveness factor. However, general budget 

information (such as the nature of funding source or the availability of the funding) may be 

evaluated as part of the financial completeness in the readiness review, or under the Partnership 

or Innovation criteria in the merit review. See Section E.1.i.g, Section E.1.i.h, and Section 

E.1.ii.c for more details.  

i. Merit Criteria  

For each merit criterion, the Department will consider whether the anticipated benefits 

are clear, direct, data-driven, and significant, which will result in a rating of “high, “medium,” 

“low,” or “non-responsive” as described in the rubric below.  

Planning grant applications will be evaluated against the same merit criteria as capital 

grants, however the information does not need to be as driven by data as a capital project, since 

data is often an outcome of the project to be planned. However, planning grant applications 

72

Item 10.



39 
 

should include data on the problem intended to be addressed. The Department will consider how 

the plan, once implemented, will ultimately further the merit criteria. 

As further described in the rubric below, to receive a “high” criterion rating, the criterion 

must be addressed as a primary project purpose (not an ancillary or incidental consideration, 

except for the Partnership and Collaboration and Innovation criteria), must include clear, direct, 

data-driven (capital projects only), and significant benefits, and must align with at least one of 

the benefits described in the high column of the merit criteria rubric. To receive a “medium” 

criterion rating, the criterion may not be a primary project purpose, or the project benefits do not 

meet at least one of the requirements for a ‘high’ rating, as described in the merit criteria rubric. 

A “low” criterion rating means the application contains insufficient information to assess that 

criterion’s benefits. Projects that negatively affect the criterion or for which the application does 

not address the criterion will receive a “non-responsive” criterion rating.  

The combination of individual criterion ratings will inform one overall Merit Rating: Highly 

Recommended, Recommended, Acceptable, or Unacceptable, as shown below.  

• Highly Recommended if six or more of the eight merit criteria ratings are “high” and 

none of the merit criteria ratings are “non-responsive.” 

• Recommended if at least one, but no more than five, of the merit criteria ratings are 

“high”, no more than three of the merit criteria ratings are “low”, and none are “non-

responsive.” 

• Acceptable if there is a combination of “high,” “medium,” “low,” or “non-responsive” 

ratings that do not fit within the definitions of Highly Recommended, Recommended, or 

Unacceptable. 

• Unacceptable if there are three or more “non-responsive” ratings.  

 

73

Item 10.



40 
 

 

Selection 
Criteria: 

Non-Responsive  Low Medium  High  

Safety Application did not 
address the Safety 
criterion 
 
OR  
 
Project negatively affects 
safety 

Application contains 
insufficient information 
to assess safety benefit  
 

The project has one or more of the 
following safety benefits, but safety may 
not be a primary project purpose or does 
not meet the description(s) of a ‘high’ 
rating: 
• Protect non-motorized or motorized 

travelers or communities from safety 
risks; or 

• Reduce any number of fatalities 
and/or serious injuries 

 

Safety is a primary project purpose AND the project has clear, 
direct, data-driven (for capital projects only), and significant 
benefits that targets a known, documented safety problem, by 
doing one or more of the following: 
• Protect non-motorized travelers and communities from 

safety risks; or  
• Reduce fatalities and/or serious injuries to bring them 

below the state-wide average for underserved 
communities; or 

• Incorporate and cite specific actions and activities 
identified in the Department’s National Roadway Safety 
Strategy plan 
 

Environmental 
Sustainability  

Application did not 
address the Environmental 
Sustainability criterion  
 
OR  
 
Project negatively affects 
environmental 
sustainability 

Application contains 
insufficient information 
to assess environmental 
sustainability benefits 
 

Project has one or more of the following 
environmental sustainability benefits, but 
environmental sustainability may not be a 
primary project purpose or does not meet 
the description(s) of a ‘high’ rating:  
• Reduce transportation-related air 

pollution and greenhouse gas 
emissions; or   

• Reduce vehicle miles traveled; or  
• Incorporate lower-carbon 

pavement/construction materials; or 
• Redevelop brownfield sites; or  
• Improve resilience of infrastructure 

to current and future weather and 
climate risks; or 

• Make basic stormwater 
improvements 

 
 
 

Environmental sustainability is a primary project purpose AND 
the project has clear, direct, data-driven (for capital projects 
only), and significant benefits that explicitly considers climate 
change and environmental justice, by doing one or more of the 
following: 
• Reduce transportation-related air pollution and greenhouse 

gas emissions in underserved communities; or  
• Address the disproportionately negative environmental 

impacts of transportation on underserved communities 
such as by reducing exposure to elevated levels of air, 
water, and noise pollution; or 

• Align with the applicant’s State, regional, county, or city 
decarbonization plan; or  

• Implement transportation-efficient land use and design, 
such as drawing on the features of historic towns and 
villages that had a mix of land uses, compact and walkable 
development patterns, accessible green space, and 
neighborhood centers; or 

• Reduce vehicle miles traveled specifically through modal 
shift to transit or active transportation; or  

• Reduce emissions specifically by shifting freight to lower-
carbon travel modes; or 

74

Item 10.



41 
 

Selection 
Criteria: 

Non-Responsive  Low Medium  High  

• Incorporate energy efficient investments, such as 
electrification or zero emission vehicle infrastructure; or 

• Improve the resilience of at-risk infrastructure to withstand 
extreme weather events and natural disasters caused by 
climate change, such as by using best-available climate 
data sets, information resources, and decision-support 
tools, and incorporating best practices identified by the 
Department (for example in the Department’s Nature-
Based Solutions for Coastal Highway Resilience 
Implementation Guide) and other Federal resources; or   

• Remove, replace, or restore culverts for the purpose of 
improving passage of aquatic species; or  

• Avoid adverse environmental impacts to air or water 
quality, wetlands, and endangered species  

  
Quality of Life  
 

Application did not 
address the Quality of Life 
criterion 
 
OR  
 
Project negatively affects 
quality of life 

Application contains 
insufficient information 
to assess quality of life 
benefits  
 

Project has one or more of the following 
quality of life benefits but quality of life 
may not be a primary project purpose or 
does not meet the description(s) of a 
‘high’ rating:  
• Increase affordability for travelers; or  
• Reduces vehicle dependence  

 

Quality of life is a primary project purpose AND the project 
has clear, direct, data-driven (for capital projects only) and 
significant benefits, by doing one or more of the following: 
• Increase affordable transportation choices by improving 

and expanding active transportation usage or significantly 
reducing vehicle dependence, particularly in underserved 
communities; or 

• Reduce transportation and housing cost burdens by 
integrating mixed-use development and a diversity of 
housing types, including affordable housing, with 
multimodal transportation infrastructure; or 

• Coordinate and integrate land use, affordable housing, and 
transportation planning in order to create more livable 
communities and expand travel choices; or  

• Improve access to daily destinations like jobs, healthcare, 
grocery stores, schools, places of worship, recreation, or 
parks through transit and active transportation; or 

• Implement transit-oriented development that benefits 
existing residents and businesses, low-income and 
disadvantaged communities, and minimizes displacement; 
or   

75

Item 10.



42 
 

Selection 
Criteria: 

Non-Responsive  Low Medium  High  

• Improve public health by adding new facilities that 
promote walking, biking, and other forms of active 
transportation; or 

• Mitigate urban heat islands to protect the health of at-risk 
residents, outdoor workers, and others; or 

• Proactively addresses equity.  
 

Mobility and 
Community 
Connectivity  
 

Application did not 
address the Mobility and 
Community Connectivity 
criterion 
 
OR 
 
Project negatively affects 
mobility and community 
connectivity 

Application contains 
insufficient information 
to assess mobility and 
community connectivity 
benefits  
 

Project has one or more of the following 
mobility and community connectivity 
benefits, but mobility and community 
connectivity may not be a primary project 
purpose or does not meet the 
description(s) of a ‘high’ rating:  

• Increase accessible 
transportation choices; or 

• Include ADA improvements  
 
 

Mobility and community connectivity is a primary project 
purpose AND the project has clear, direct, data-driven (for 
capital projects only) and significant benefits, by doing one or 
more of the following: 
• Improve system-wide connectivity with access to transit, 

micro-mobility, and mobility on-demand; or 
• Implement plans, based on community participation and 

data, that identifies and addresses gaps in the existing 
network; or 

• Remove physical barriers for individuals by reconnecting 
communities to direct, affordable transportation options; 
or 

• Include transportation features that increase the 
accessibility for non-motorized travelers for underserved 
communities, such as through a Complete Streets 
approach; or  

• Incorporate Universal Design including details of how the 
improvements go beyond ADA requirements; or  

• Directly increasing intermodal and multimodal freight 
movement; or  

• Consider last-mile freight plans in a Complete Streets and 
multimodal approach 
 

76

Item 10.



43 
 

Selection 
Criteria: 

Non-Responsive  Low Medium  High  

Economic 
Competitiveness 
and Opportunity  

Application did not 
address the Economic 
Competitiveness and 
Opportunity criterion  
 
OR  
 
Project negatively affects 
economic competitiveness 
and opportunity 

Application contains 
insufficient information 
to assess economic 
competitiveness and 
opportunity benefits  
 

Project has one or more of the following 
economic competitiveness and 
opportunity benefits, but economic 
competitiveness and opportunity may not 
be a primary project purpose or does not 
meet the description(s) of a ‘high’ rating:  
• Improve travel time reliability; or 
• Improve movement of goods; or 
• Create jobs related to the project’s 

delivery and on-going operations  
 

Economic competitiveness is a primary project purpose AND 
the project has clear, direct, data-driven (for capital projects 
only), and significant benefits, by doing one or more of the 
following: 
• Improve intermodal and/or multimodal freight mobility, 

especially for supply chain bottlenecks; or 
• Facilitate tourism opportunities; or 
• Inclusive economic development such as the utilization of 

Minority Business Enterprises, Minority Owned 
Businesses, Woman Owned Businesses, and Veteran 
Owned Businesses; or 

• Promote wealth building; or   
• Promote long-term economic growth and other broader 

economic and fiscal benefits; or 
• Promote robust job creation by supporting good-paying 

jobs directly related to the project with free and fair choice 
to join a union, expand training programs, and implement 
policies such as targeted hiring preferences that will 
promote the entry and retention of underrepresented 
populations into those jobs including women, people of 
color, and people with convictions; or 

• Promote greater public and private investments in land-use 
productivity, including rural main street revitalization or 
locally driven density decisions that support equitable 
commercial and mixed-income residential development 

State of Good 
Repair 

Application did not 
address the State of Good 
Repair criterion 
 
OR  
 
Project negatively affects 
state of good repair 

Application contains 
insufficient information 
to assess state of good 
repair benefits  
 

Project has one or more of the following 
state of good repair benefits but state of 
good repair may not be a primary project 
purpose or does not meet the 
description(s) of a ‘high’ rating: 
• Routine or deferred maintenance; or   
• Create new infrastructure (not in a 

remote community) that will be 
maintained in a state of good repair; 
or 

• Identify the party responsible for 
maintenance and describe how the 

State of good repair is a primary project purpose AND the 
project has clear, direct, data-driven (for capital projects only) 
and significant benefits, by doing one or more of the following: 
• Restore and modernize (such as through road diets and 

complete streets approaches) the existing core 
infrastructure assets that have met their useful life; or   

• Reduce construction and maintenance burdens through 
efficient and well-integrated design; or 

• Create new infrastructure in remote communities that will 
be maintained in a state of good repair; or 

• Address current or projected system vulnerabilities for 
underserved communities; or  

77

Item 10.



44 
 

Selection 
Criteria: 

Non-Responsive  Low Medium  High  

new or improved asset(s) will be 
maintained in a state of good repair; 
or 

• Resolve the current or projected 
system vulnerabilities 

• Prioritize improvement of the condition and safety of 
existing transportation infrastructure within the existing 
footprint 

 
 

Partnership and 
Collaboration  

Application did not 
address the Partnership 
and Collaboration criterion 
 
OR  
 
Project negatively affects 
partners or community 
members (e.g. negative 
impacts from ROW 
acquisition, lack of 
support for the project, 
etc.) 

Application contains 
insufficient information 
to assess the partnership 
and collaboration 
benefits 
 

Project has one or more of the following 
partnership and collaboration benefits but 
partnership and collaboration may not be 
a primary project purpose or does not 
meet the description(s) of a ‘high’ rating:  
• Collaborate with public and/or 

private entities; or 
• Document support from local, 

regional, or national levels  
 

 

Project has, or demonstrates plans to, support and engage 
diverse people and communities that go above and beyond, by 
doing one or more of the following: 
• Engage residents and community-based organizations to 

ensure equity considerations for underserved communities 
are meaningfully integrated throughout the lifecycle of the 
project, for example, by citing and describing how the 
project aligns with the Department’s Promising Practices 
for Meaningful Public Involvement in Transportation 
Decision-Making Guide; or 

• Coordinate with other types of projects such as economic 
development, commercial or residential development near 
public transportation, power/electric infrastructure 
projects, or broadband deployment; or 

• Partner with Minority Business Enterprises, Minority 
Owned Businesses, Woman Owned Businesses, and 
Veteran Owned Businesses; or 

• Partner with high-quality workforce development 
programs with supportive services to help train, place, and 
retain underrepresented communities in good-paying jobs 
or registered apprenticeships; or  

• Partner and engage with unions and/or worker 
organizations in the development of the project and the 
lifecycle of the project, including the maintenance or 
operation of the completed project; or 

78

Item 10.



45 
 

Selection 
Criteria: 

Non-Responsive  Low Medium  High  

• Partner with communities or community groups 
representative of historically underrepresented groups to 
develop workforce strategies; or 

• Establish formal public-private partnerships or joint 
ventures to expand or create new infrastructure or 
economic development capacity; or 

• Participate in a non-DOT Federal capacity-building 
program, such as the Department of Housing and Urban 
Development’s Thriving Communities Technical 
Assistance or the Environmental Protection Agency’s  
Environmental Justice Thriving Communities Technical 
Assistance Centers Program. 

Innovation Application did not 
address the Innovation 
criterion.  
 
OR 
 
Includes non-innovative 
practices or components 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Application contains 
insufficient information 
to assess innovation 
benefits  
 

Project has one or more of the following 
innovation benefits but does not meet the 
description(s) of a ‘high’ rating: 

• Deploy technologies, project 
delivery, or financing methods 
that are new or innovative to the 
applicant or community 

 
 

 
 

Project has, or demonstrates plans for, one or more of the 
following innovative benefits.   
• Innovative Technologies 

o Enhance the environment for electric, connected, 
and automated vehicles to improve the detection, 
mitigation, and documentation of safety risks; or 

o Use low-carbon materials; or  
o Use caps, land bridges, or underdecks 

• Innovative Project Delivery 
o Use practices that facilitate accelerated project 

delivery such as single contractor design-build 
arrangements, congestion management, asset 
management, or long-term operations and 
maintenance 

• Innovative Financing  
o Secure TIFIA, RRIF, or private activity bond 

financing; or  
o Use congestion pricing or other demand 

management strategies 
 

79

Item 10.



 

 
 

a. Safety   

DOT will assess how the project targets a known safety problem and seeks to protect 

motorized or non-motorized travelers and communities from safety risks. Applicants are highly 

encouraged to include data-driven information when addressing the safety criterion such as the 

current and projected number or rate of crashes, fatalities and/or serious injuries among 

transportation users and how those compare to the statewide average; details about the 

transportation user that will reap the safety benefits such as whether the project addresses 

vulnerable roadway users24  or whether the project addresses inequities in crash victims. If 

applicable, applicants should describe how the project incorporates specific actions and activities 

identified in DOT’s National Roadway Safety Strategy.25  

b. Environmental Sustainability  

DOT will consider the extent to which the project incorporates considerations of climate 

change and environmental justice in the project planning or project delivery stage. 

Environmental justice, as defined by the Environmental Protection Agency, is the fair treatment 

and meaningful involvement of all people regardless of race, color, national origin, or income, 

with respect to the development, implementation, and enforcement of environmental laws, 

regulations, and policies.  

DOT will evaluate whether and how the project demonstrates environmental sustainability 

benefits. For this assessment, DOT will consider, for example, how the project will significantly 

reduce transportation-related pollution like air pollution and greenhouse gas emissions; aligns 

with the applicant’s State, regional, county or city carbon-reduction plan; address the 

 
24 As defined by FHWA’s Vulnerable Road User Safety Assessment Guidance, a vulnerable road user is a 
nonmotorist and may include people walking, biking, or rolling as well as highway workers on foot in a work zone.  
25 www.transportation.gov/NRSS 

80

Item 10.



 

 
 

disproportionate negative environmental impacts of transportation such as exposure to elevated 

levels of air, water, and noise pollution; or implement transportation-efficient land use and 

design, such as drawing on the features of historic towns and villages that had a mix of land uses, 

compact and walkable development patterns, accessible green space, and neighborhood centers.  

DOT will assess whether and how the project is expected to reduce emissions, such as shifts 

to lower emissions vehicles, transit, or active transportation; shift freight to lower-carbon travel 

modes to reduce emissions; improve the resiliency of at-risk infrastructure26 to withstand 

extreme weather events and natural disasters caused by climate change such as by using best-

available climate data sets, information resources, and decision-support tools, and incorporating 

best practices identified by the Department (for example, in the Department’s Nature-Based 

Solutions for Coastal Highway Resilience Implementation Guide); or incorporates lower-carbon 

pavement/construction materials.  

DOT will also consider whether and how the project will incorporate energy efficient 

investments such as electrification or zero emission vehicle infrastructure; redevelop brownfield 

sites; remove, replace or restore culverts to improve passage of aquatic species; or avoid adverse 

impacts to air or water quality, wetlands, and endangered species. If applicable, applicants are 

encouraged to make floodplain upgrades consistent with the Federal Flood Risk Management 

Standard, to the extent consistent with current law, in Executive Order 14030, Climate-Related 

Financial Risk (86 FR 27967) and 13690, Establishing a Federal Flood Risk Management 

Standard and a Process for Further Soliciting and Considering Stakeholder Input (80 FR 6425.)  

 
26 For the RAISE program, at-risk infrastructure is defined as infrastructure that is subject to, or faces increased 
long-term future risks of, a weather event, a natural disaster, or changing conditions, such as coastal flooding, 
coastal erosion, wave action, storm surge, or sea level rise, in order to improve transportation and public safety and 
to reduce costs by avoiding larger future maintenance or rebuilding costs. 

81

Item 10.



 

 
 

c. Quality of Life  

DOT will consider whether and how the project will improve quality of life, such as by 

increasing affordable transportation choices and expanding active transportation usage or 

significantly reducing vehicle dependence; reduce transportation and housing cost burdens by 

integrating mixed use development and a diversity of housing types (including affordable 

housing) with multimodal transportation infrastructure; coordinate and integrate land use, 

affordable housing, and transportation planning in order to create more livable communities and 

expand travel choices; reduce vehicle dependence and improve access to daily destinations such 

as jobs, healthcare, grocery store, schools, places of worship, recreation, or parks such as by 

adding new facilities that promote walking, biking; implement transit-oriented development that 

benefits existing residents and businesses; mitigate urban heat islands to protect the health of at-

risk residents, outdoor workers, and others; or proactively address racial equity.27 

d. Mobility and Community Connectivity  

DOT will assess whether and how the applicant will improve mobility and community 

connectivity. For this assessment, DOT will consider, for example,  how the project will address 

system-wide connectivity with access to transit, micro-mobility, and mobility on-demand; 

implement plans, based on community participation and data, that identifies and addresses gaps 

in the existing network; remove physical barriers for individuals by reconnecting communities to 

direct, affordable transportation options; include transportation features that increase 

accessibility for non-motorized travelers, such as through a Complete Streets approach; 

incorporate Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) or Universal Design improvements; directly 

 
27 Definitions for “racial equity” and “underserved communities” are found in Executive Order 
 13985, Advancing Racial Equity and Support for Underserved Communities Through the Federal Government, 
Sections 2 (a) and (b). 

82

Item 10.



 

 
 

increase intermodal and multimodal freight movement; or considers last-mile freight plans in a 

Complete Streets and multimodal approach.  

e. Economic Competitiveness and Opportunity 

DOT will assess whether and how the project will improve economic competitiveness 

and opportunity. For this assessment, DOT will consider, for example, how the project will 

improve intermodal or multimodal freight mobility, especially for supply chain bottle necks; 

facilitate tourism; include inclusive economic development such as the utilization use of 

Minority Business Enterprises, Minority Owned Businesses, Woman Owned Businesses, and 

Veteran Owned Businesses; promote wealth building; promote long-term economic growth and 

other broader economic and fiscal benefits; promote robust job creation by supporting good-

paying jobs with free and fair choice to join a union in project construction and in on-going 

operations and maintenance; invest in high-quality workforce training programs such as 

registered apprenticeship programs to recruit, train, and retain skilled workers, and implement 

policies such as targeted hiring preferences28 that will promote the entry and retention of local 

underrepresented populations into those jobs including women, people of color, and people with 

convictions;  improve travel time reliability; improve the movement of goods; or support logistic 

jobs related to terminal, warehouse, or manufacturing industries. DOT will evaluate the extent to 

which the project will promote greater public and private investments in land-use productivity, 

including rural main street revitalization or locally driven density decisions that support equitable 

commercial and mixed-income residential development.     

 
28 IIJA div. B § 25019 provides authority to use geographical and economic hiring preferences, including local hire, 
for construction jobs, subject to any applicable State and local laws, policies, and procedures. Project labor 
agreement should be consistent with the definition and standards outlined in Executive Order 13502. 

83

Item 10.



 

 
 

f. State of Good Repair 

DOT will assess whether and to what extent the project improves state of good repair.  For 

this assessment, DOT will consider, for example, how the project will mitigate current or 

projected system vulnerabilities; restore and modernize (such as through road diets and  

Complete Streets approaches) the existing core infrastructure assets that have met their useful 

life; reduce construction and maintenance burdens through efficient and well-integrated design; 

create new infrastructure in remote communities that will be maintained in a state of good repair; 

prioritize improvement of the condition and safety of existing transportation infrastructure within 

the existing footprint; conduct routine or deferred maintenance; create new infrastructure (not in 

a remote community) that will be maintained in a state of good repair; or identify the party 

responsible for maintenance and how the new or improved asset(s) will be maintained in a state 

of good repair. 

 The Department encourages applicants to improve the condition and safety of existing 

state and locally owned transportation infrastructure within the right-of-way before proposing 

projects that add new general purpose travel lanes serving single occupancy vehicles. 

g. Partnership and Collaboration 

DOT will consider the extent to which the project has or will support and engage diverse 

people and communities. For this assessment, DOT will consider, for example , how the project 

has or will collaborate with public and/or private entities; documents support from local, 

regional, and/or national levels;  engage residents and community-based organizations to ensure 

equity considerations for underserved communities are meaningfully integrated throughout the 

project (for example, whether and how the project incorporates best practices from the 

Department’s Promising Practices for Meaningful Public Involvement in Transportation 

84

Item 10.



 

 
 

Decision-Making Guide);29 coordinate with other types of projects such as economic 

development, commercial or residential development near public transportation, power/electric 

infrastructure projects, or broadband deployment; partners with Minority Business Enterprises, 

Minority Owned Businesses, Woman Owned Businesses, and Veteran Owned Businesses; 

partner with high-quality workforce development programs with supportive services30 to help 

train, place, and retain underrepresented communities in good-paying jobs or registered 

apprenticeships including through the use of local and economic hiring preferences, linkage 

agreements with workforce programs that serve underrepresented groups, and proactive plans to 

prevent harassment; partner and engage with local unions or other worker-based organizations in 

the development and lifecycle of the project, including through evidence of project labor 

agreements and/or community benefit agreements; or partners with communities, or community 

groups representative of historically underrepresented groups, to develop workforce strategies; or 

establish formal public-private partnerships or joint ventures to expand or create new 

infrastructure or economic development capacity. DOT will assess the level of detail and 

description provided about the partnerships listed above. Applications that provide more details 

and descriptions about the project partnership will be rated higher than those that do not, in 

alignment with the merit rating rubric.  

DOT will consider whether the applicant is participating in a non-DOT Federal capacity-

building program as part of the Thriving Communities Network31 which includes Department of 

 
29 https://www.transportation.gov/priorities/equity/promising-practices-meaningful-public-involvement-
transportation-decision-making  
30 Supportive services are critical to help women and people facing systemic barriers to employment be able to 
participate and thrive in training and employment. Recommended supportive services include childcare, tools, work 
clothing, application fees and other costs of apprenticeship or required pre-employment training, transportation and 
travel to training and work sites, and services aimed at helping to retain underrepresented groups like mentoring, 
support groups, and peer networking. 
31 https://www.transportation.gov/federal-interagency-thriving-communities-network  

85

Item 10.

https://www.transportation.gov/priorities/equity/promising-practices-meaningful-public-involvement-transportation-decision-making
https://www.transportation.gov/priorities/equity/promising-practices-meaningful-public-involvement-transportation-decision-making
https://www.transportation.gov/federal-interagency-thriving-communities-network


 

 
 

Housing and Urban Development’s Thriving Communities Technical Assistance32 and the 

Environmental Justice Thriving Communities Technical Assistance Centers Program.33 

Applications that include right-of-way acquisition plans that minimally disrupts communities and 

maintains community cohesion will be more competitive than right-of-way acquisition plans that 

disrupt communities. For projects involving other Federal agencies, or requiring action from 

other Federal agencies, DOT will consider the level of involvement and commitment from those 

agencies.  For example, relevant port projects should demonstrate alignment with U.S. Army 

Corps of Engineers investment strategies. 

h. Innovation  

Consistent with DOT’s Innovation Principles to support workers, allow for experimentation 

and learn from failure, provide opportunities to collaborate, and be flexible and adapt as 

technology changes, DOT will assess the extent to which the applicant uses innovative strategies, 

including: (1) innovative technologies, (2) innovative project delivery, or (3) innovative 

financing. Applicants should provide enough detail to determine whether the innovations being 

deployed are new or innovative to the applicant or community. If an applicant is proposing to 

adopt innovative technology or other innovative practices, DOT will assess whether the 

applicant’s capacity to implement those innovations, the applicant’s understanding of applicable 

Federal requirements and whether the innovations may require extraordinary permitting, 

approvals, exemptions, waivers, or other procedural actions, and the effects of those innovations 

on the project delivery timeline.  If this project is the first time the applicant or community will 

 
32 https://www.hud.gov/program_offices/spm/gmomgmt/grantsinfo/fundingopps/fy22_tc  
33 https://www.epa.gov/environmentaljustice/environmental-justice-thriving-communities-technical-assistance-
centers 

86

Item 10.

https://www.hud.gov/program_offices/spm/gmomgmt/grantsinfo/fundingopps/fy22_tc


 

 
 

deploy specific innovations, DOT will consider them innovative, regardless of whether other 

applicants or communities have incorporated these innovations into standard/routine practice. 

If an applicant is proposing to deploy autonomous vehicles or other innovative motor vehicle 

technology, DOT will consider whether and how the applicant demonstrates that all vehicles will 

comply with applicable safety requirements, including those administered by the National 

Highway Traffic Safety Administration (NHTSA) and Federal Motor Carrier Safety 

Administration (FMCSA). Specifically, DOT will consider whether the vehicles acquired for the 

proposed project will comply with applicable Federal Motor Vehicle Safety Standards (FMVSS) 

and Federal Motor Carrier Safety Regulations (FMCSR). If the vehicles may not comply, DOT 

will consider  applications that do one of the following more competitive than applications that 

do not: either (1) show that the vehicles and their proposed operations are within the scope of an 

exemption or waiver that has already been granted by NHTSA, FMCSA, or both agencies or (2) 

directly address whether the project will require exemptions or waivers from the FMVSS, 

FMCSR, or any other regulation and, if the project will require exemptions or waivers, present a 

plan for obtaining them.  

1. Innovative Technologies 

DOT will consider how projects enhance the environment for connected, electric, and 

automated vehicles to improve the detection, mitigation, and documentation of safety risks.  

DOT will also assess the extent to which the project uses innovative technology that supports 

surface transportation to significantly enhance the operational performance of the transportation 

system. Please note that all innovative technology must be in compliance with 2 CFR 

§ 200.216.34 

 
34 https://ecfr.federalregister.gov/current/title-2/subtitle-A/chapter-II/part-200/subpart-C/section-200.216 

87

Item 10.



 

 
 

2. Innovative Project Delivery 

DOT will consider the extent to which the project utilizes innovative practices in 

contracting (such as public-private partnerships and single contractor design-build 

arrangements), congestion management, asset management, or long-term operations and 

maintenance.   

DOT also seeks projects that employ innovative approaches to improve the efficiency and 

effectiveness of the environmental permitting and review process to accelerate project delivery. 

DOT’s objective is to achieve timely and consistent environmental review and permit 

decisions. Participation in innovative project delivery approaches will not remove any statutory 

requirements affecting project delivery.   

3. Innovative Financing 

DOT will assess the extent to which the project incorporates innovations in transportation 

funding and finance, for example through private sector funding or financing, using congestion 

pricing or other demand management strategies to address congestion, securing a TIFIA or RRIF 

loan, or receiving an allocation for private activity bonds through DOT’s Build America Bureau.  

ii. Demonstrated Project Readiness 

Capital project applications that receive second-tier analysis35 will be reviewed for 

Project Readiness and assigned three evaluation ratings: Environmental Risk Assessment, 

Technical Capacity Assessment, and Financial Completeness Assessment.  Planning project 

applications that receive second-tier analysis will be reviewed for Project Readiness and assigned 

two evaluation ratings: Technical Capacity Assessment and Financial Completeness Assessment. 

(Environmental Risk Assessment will not be performed for planning applications). Low ratings 

 
35 The process for determining which applications receive second-tier analysis is described in Section E.2 of this 
notice. 

88

Item 10.



 

 
 

in any of these readiness areas do not disqualify projects from award, but competitive 

applications clearly and directly describe achievable risk mitigation strategies.  A project with 

mitigated risks or with a risk mitigation plan is more competitive than a comparable project with 

unaddressed risks. 

(a) Environmental Risk  

Environmental Risk Assessment analyzes the project’s environmental approvals and 

likelihood of the necessary approval affecting project obligation as described in Section D of the 

NOFO, and results in a rating of “high risk,” “moderate risk,” or “low risk”.  

(b) Technical Capacity 

The Technical Capacity Assessment will assess the applicant’s capacity to successfully 

deliver the project in compliance with applicable Federal requirements based on factors 

including, but not limited to, the recipient’s experience working with Federal agencies, civil 

rights compliance, previous experience with DOT discretionary grant awards and/or the technical 

experience and resources dedicated to the project. This review is partially based on information 

submitted with the application and partially based on DOT Operating Administration knowledge 

of the applicant’s performance. Technical Capacity ratings will be one of the following: 

“certain,” “somewhat certain,” or “uncertain.” DOT will assign the highest rating of “certain,” if 

the applications demonstrate that: the applicant has extensive experience with Federal funds; the 

applicant has extensive experience completing projects with similar scope; the applicant has the 

resources to deliver the project; the project has minimal or no incomplete ROW acquisition; and 

the project will comply with all applicable Federal requirements including but not limited to Buy 

America provisions, ADA regulations, Civil Rights requirements, Federal Motor Vehicle Safety 

Standards (FMVSS), and/or the Federal Motor Carrier Safety Regulations (FMCSR). 

89

Item 10.



 

 
 

(c) Financial Completeness 

The Financial Completeness Assessment reviews the availability of funding for the 

project and whether the applicant presented a complete funding package. Financial Completeness 

ratings are: “complete, “partially complete,” or “incomplete.” DOT will assign the highest rating 

of “complete,” if the application identifies funding sources for the full project budget, indicates 

the funding level of commitment or availability, includes documented support such as letters of 

commitment, and indicates a plan to address potential cost overruns (by including an explicit 

contingency amount with a source, or otherwise). DOT will also consider whether the applicant 

indicated the level of design that the project is based on. Projects with funding estimates that are 

based on early stages of design (e.g., less than 30 percent design) or outdated cost estimates 

without specified budget contingencies may receive a lower rating. All applicants, including 

those requesting 100 percent grant funding, should describe a plan to address potential cost 

overruns.   

iii. Economic Analysis of Project Costs and Benefits 

For capital projects that receive second-tier analysis, DOT will consider the costs and 

benefits of projects seeking RAISE grant funding in determining whether a project is cost 

effective.  To the extent possible, DOT will rely on quantitative, evidenced-based and data-

supported analysis to assess how well a project addresses this criterion, including an assessment 

of the project’s estimated benefit-cost ratio (BCR) based on the applicant-supplied BCA 

described in Section D.2.vi.   

To evaluate the costs and benefits of a proposed project, DOT will assign the project as 

either negative net benefits (costs exceed benefits) or positive net benefits (benefits exceed 

costs.) Projects with negative net benefit ratings will not be selected for an award, unless the 

90

Item 10.



 

 
 

project has unquantified benefits that demonstrate clear outcomes for underserved communities, 

as identified by the Senior Review Team.36 

iv. Additional Considerations  

The BIL requires DOT to consider geographical and modal diversity when selecting 

RAISE grant awards.  

2. Review and Selection Process 

This section explicitly addresses the BIL requirement to describe the methodology for 

evaluation in the NOFO.  The RAISE grant program review and selection process consists of 

Merit Criteria Review; Project Readiness Review (consisting of Technical Capacity Assessment, 

Environmental Risk Assessment, Financial Completeness Assessment); Economic Analysis; and 

Senior Review. The Secretary makes final project selections.  

  Teams comprising Department and contractor staff review all eligible applications received 

by the deadline for a Merit Review and assign ratings as described in Section E.1.i. Using the 

rubric described in section E.1.i, the combination of eight merit criteria ratings will result in one 

overall Merit Rating: Highly Recommended, Recommended, Acceptable, or Unacceptable. 

  The Senior Review Team (SRT) reviews all “Recommended” projects to determine if the 

benefits of a particular criterion are so significant that the project merits advancing for second-

tier analysis. The SRT can advance a “Recommended” project only if  

(1) the project received a “high” in one or more of the priority criteria of safety, 

environmental sustainability, mobility and community connectivity, or quality of life, and the 

benefits in that criterion are exceptional; or  

 
36 The Senior Review Team, and its role in the application evaluation and selection process, is described in section 
E.2 of this notice. 

91

Item 10.



 

 
 

(2) if the SRT provides additional information to demonstrate that a criterion has benefits that 

are aligned with a “high” rating for one or more of the priority merit criteria listed above 

(whether or not the Merit Review Team assigned a “high” rating) and the benefits in that 

criterion would be exceptional. 

Senior Operating Administration staff and OST staff may make recommendations to the SRT 

for which projects should advance based on exceptional benefits of a particular priority criterion. 

“Highly Recommended” projects automatically advance for second-tier analysis. 

“Recommended” projects designated a “Reconnecting Extra” project under the FY 2022 

Reconnecting Communities Program competition that receive at least one “High” in a priority 

criterion during the FY 2023 RAISE application evaluation process will automatically advance 

for second-tier analysis.  

Second-tier analysis for capital projects consists of (1) an Economic Analysis; (2) an 

Environmental Risk Assessment; (3) a Financial Completeness Assessment and (4) Technical 

Capacity Assessment.  

Second-tier analysis for planning projects consists of (1) a Financial Completeness 

Assessment and (2) a Technical Capacity Assessment. 

Following completion of second-tier analysis, the SRT determines which projects are 

designated as Highly Rated. The Secretary selects projects from the Highly Rated List for award, 

consistent with the selection criteria and statutory requirements for geographic and modal 

diversity.  

 The BIL mandates that RAISE grant award selections be announced by June 28, 2023.   

Consistent with past practice, the Department offers debriefs to applicants not selected for 

award to receive information about the RAISE project’s evaluation. Due to overwhelming 

92

Item 10.



 

 
 

demand, the Department is unable to provide a RAISE award to every competitive project that 

applies. The Department will identify “Projects of Merit” with the aim of encouraging sponsors 

with competitive projects that do not receive an FY 2023 RAISE award to consider applying in 

future rounds of funding. Projects for which a RAISE application is advanced by the Senior 

Review Team on the Highly Rated List, but that are not awarded, are automatically designated as 

“Projects of Merit.” This designation provides the sponsors of these projects the opportunity to 

receive additional technical assistance that encourages sponsors with competitive projects to 

apply in the future.  

3. Additional Information 

Prior to award, each selected applicant will be subject to a risk assessment as required by 2 

CFR § 200.206.  DOT must review and consider any information about the applicant that is in   

the Federal Awardee Performance and Integrity Information System (FAPIIS), the designated 

integrity and performance system accessible through SAM.  An applicant may review 

information in FAPIIS and comment on any information about itself that a Federal awarding 

agency previously entered.  DOT will consider comments by the applicant, in addition to the 

other information in FAPIIS, in making a judgment about the applicant's integrity, business 

ethics, and record of performance under Federal awards when completing the review of risk 

posed by applicants. 

F. Federal Award Administration Information 

1. Federal Award Notice  

Following the evaluation outlined in Section E, the Secretary will announce awarded projects 

by posting a list of selected projects at www.transportation.gov/RAISEgrants. Notice of selection 

is not authorization to begin performance or to incur costs for the proposed project.  Following 

93

Item 10.

http://www.transportation.gov/BUILDgrants


 

 
 

that announcement, the relevant operating administration will contact the point of contact listed 

in the SF-424 to initiate negotiation of the grant agreement for authorization.  

Recipients of RAISE Grant awards will not receive lump-sum cash disbursements at the time 

of award announcement or obligation of funds.  Instead, RAISE funds will reimburse recipients 

only after a grant agreement has been executed, allowable expenses are incurred, and valid 

requests for reimbursement are submitted. 

Unless authorized by DOT in writing after DOT’s announcement of FY 2023 RAISE awards, 

any costs that a recipient incurs before DOT executes a grant agreement for that recipient’s 

project are ineligible for reimbursement and are ineligible match for cost share requirements.  

2. Administrative and National Policy Requirements  

i.  Administrative Requirements 

Please visit https://www.transportation.gov/policy-initiatives/raise/raise-grant-agreements for 

the General Terms and Conditions for FY 2022 RAISE awards. The FY 2023 RAISE Terms and 

Conditions will be similar to the FY 2022 RAISE Terms and Conditions, but it will include 

relevant updates consistent with this notice.  

All awards will be administered pursuant to the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost 

Principles and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards found in 2 C.F.R part 200, as adopted by 

DOT at 2 C.F.R part 1201.  Federal wage rate requirements included in subchapter IV of chapter 

31 of title 40, U.S.C., apply to all projects receiving funds under this program, and apply to all 

parts of the project, whether funded with RAISE Grant funds, other Federal funds, or non-

Federal funds.  

In connection with any program or activity conducted with or benefiting from funds awarded 

under this notice, recipients of funds must comply with all applicable requirements of Federal 

94

Item 10.

https://www.transportation.gov/policy-initiatives/raise/raise-grant-agreements


 

 
 

law, including, without limitation, the Constitution of the United States; the conditions of 

performance, non-discrimination requirements, and other assurances made applicable to the 

award of funds in accordance with regulations of the Department of Transportation; and 

applicable Federal financial assistance and contracting principles promulgated by the Office of 

Management and Budget.  In complying with these requirements, recipients, in particular, must 

ensure that no concession agreements are denied or other contracting decisions made on the basis 

of speech or other activities protected by the First Amendment.  If DOT determines that a 

recipient has failed to comply with applicable Federal requirements, DOT may terminate the 

award of funds and disallow previously incurred costs, requiring the recipient to reimburse any 

expended award funds. 

Additionally, applicable Federal laws, rules and regulations of the relevant operating 

administration administering the project will apply to the projects that receive RAISE grant 

awards, including planning requirements, Service Outcome Agreements, Stakeholder 

Agreements, Buy America compliance, and other requirements under DOT’s other highway, 

transit, rail, and port grant programs. For projects that are eligible under RAISE but are not 

eligible under DOT’s other programs or projects that are eligible under multiple DOT programs, 

the RAISE program will determine the appropriate requirements to ensure the project is 

delivered consistent with program and Department goals. In particular, Executive Order 14005 

directs the Executive Branch Departments and agencies to maximize the use of goods, products, 

and materials produced in, and services offered in, the United States through the terms and 

conditions of Federal financial assistance awards.  If selected for an award, grant recipients must 

be prepared to demonstrate how they will maximize the use of domestic goods, products, and 

materials in constructing their project. RAISE grant projects involving vehicle acquisition must 

95

Item 10.



 

 
 

involve only vehicles that comply with applicable Federal Motor Vehicle Safety Standards and 

Federal Motor Carriers Safety Regulations, or vehicles that are exempt from Federal Motor 

Vehicle Safety Standards or Federal Motor Carrier Safety Regulations in a manner that allows 

for the legal acquisition and deployment of the vehicle or vehicles. 

For projects administered by FHWA, applicable Federal laws, rules, and regulations set forth 

in Title 23 U.S.C. and Title 23 C.F.R generally apply, including the 23 U.S.C. 129 restrictions on 

the use of toll revenues, and Section 4(f) preservation of parklands and historic properties 

requirements under 23 U.S.C. 138. For an illustrative list of the other applicable laws, rules, 

regulations, executive orders, polices, guidelines, and requirements as they relate to a RAISE 

grant project administered by the FHWA, please see 

https://www.transportation.gov/grants/raise/raise-fy2022-fhwa-exhibits-october-18-2022.  

For RAISE projects administered by the Federal Transit Administration and partially funded 

with Federal transit assistance, all relevant requirements under chapter 53 of title 49 U.S.C. 

apply.  For transit projects funded exclusively with RAISE grant funds, some requirements of 

chapter 53 of title 49 U.S.C. and chapter VI of title 49 CFR apply. 

For projects administered by the Federal Railroad Administration, FRA requirements 

described in 49 U.S.C. Subtitle V, Part C apply.   

ii. Program Requirements  

(a) Climate Change and Environmental Justice Impact Consideration  

Each applicant selected for RAISE grant funding must demonstrate effort to consider climate 

change and environmental justice impacts as described in Section A. Projects that have not 

sufficiently considered climate change and environmental justice in their planning, as determined 

by the Department, will be required to do so before receiving funds for construction, consistent 

96

Item 10.

https://www.transportation.gov/grants/raise/raise-fy2022-fhwa-exhibits-october-18-2022


 

 
 

with Executive Order 14008, Tackling the Climate Crisis at Home and Abroad (86 FR 7619). In 

the grant agreement, applicants will be required to certify that they have taken one or more of the 

activities in Section E (b) or will be required to propose a new activity to be completed prior to 

obligation of construction funds that addresses climate change and environmental justice.   

(b) Racial Equity and Barriers to Opportunity 

Each applicant selected for RAISE grant funding must demonstrate effort to improve racial 

equity and reduce barriers to opportunity as described in Section A. Projects that have not 

sufficiently considered climate change and environmental justice in their planning, as determined 

by the Department, will be required to do so before receiving funds for construction, consistent 

with Executive Order 13985, Advancing Racial Equity and Support for Underserved 

Communities Through the Federal Government (86 FR 7009). In the grant agreement, applicants 

will be required to certify that they have taken one or more of the activities listed in Section 

E.1.i.c, or will be required to propose a new activity to be completed prior to obligation of 

construction funds that addresses racial equity and barriers to opportunity. 

(c) Labor and Work 

Each applicant selected for RAISE grant funding must demonstrate, to the full extent possible 

consistent with the law, an effort to create good-paying jobs with the free and fair choice to join 

a union and incorporation of strong labor standards as described in Section E. Projects that have 

not sufficiently considered job quality and labor rights, standards, and protections in their 

planning, as determined by the Department, will be required to do so, to the full extent possible 

under the law, before receiving funds for construction, consistent with Executive Order 14025, 

Worker Organizing and Empowerment (86 FR 22829), and Executive Order 14052, 

97

Item 10.



 

 
 

Implementation of the Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act (86 FR 64335). RAISE funds may 

not be used to support or oppose union organizing. 

(d) Critical Infrastructure Security and Resilience  

It is the policy of the United States to strengthen the security and resilience of its critical 

infrastructure against both physical and cyber threats. Each applicant selected for Federal 

funding under this notice must demonstrate, prior to the signing of the grant agreement, effort to 

consider and address physical and cyber security risks relevant to the transportation mode and 

type and scale of the project. Projects that have not appropriately considered and addressed 

physical and cyber security and resilience in their planning, design, and project oversight, as 

determined by the Department, will be required to do so before receiving funds for construction, 

consistent with Presidential Policy Directive 21 - Critical Infrastructure Security and Resilience 

and the National Security Presidential Improving Cybersecurity for Critical Infrastructure 

Control Systems. Information on cybersecurity performance goals can be found at 

https://www.cisa.gov/cpg.  These performance goals provide a baseline set of cybersecurity 

practices broadly applicable across critical infrastructure with known risk-reduction value, a 

benchmark for critical infrastructure operators to measure and improve their cybersecurity 

maturity, and a combination of recommended practices for IT and OT owners, including a 

prioritized set of security practices.   Additionally, funding recipients must comply with 2 CFR 

§ 200.216 and the prohibition on certain telecommunications and video surveillance services or 

equipment. 

(e) Domestic Preference Requirements 

As expressed in Executive Order 14005, ‘Ensuring the Future Is Made in All of America by All 

of America’s Workers’ (86 FR 7475), the executive branch should maximize, consistent with 

98

Item 10.



 

 
 

law, the use of goods, products, and materials produced in, and services offered in, the United 

States. Funds made available under this notice are subject to domestic preference requirements 

based on the Operating Administration that administers the project, including 23 U.S.C. 313 

(FHWA projects); 49 U.S.C. 5323(j) (FTA projects); 49 U.S.C. 22905(a) (FRA projects); and 

section 70914(a) of the Build America, Buy America Act (all projects). The Department expects 

all applicants to comply without needing a project-specific waiver for domestic preference 

requirements. 

(f) Civil Rights and Title VI  

As a condition of a grant award, grant recipients should demonstrate that the recipient has a plan 

for compliance with civil rights obligations and nondiscrimination laws, including Title VI of the 

Civil Rights Act of 1964 and implementing regulations (49 CFR part 21), the Americans with 

Disabilities Act of 1990 (ADA), Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act, all other civil rights 

requirements, and accompanying regulations. This should include a current Title VI program 

plan, completed Community Participation Plan (alternatively called a Public Participation Plan), 

and a plan to address any legacy infrastructure or facilities that are not compliant with ADA 

standards. DOT’s and the applicable Operating Administrations’ Office of Civil Rights may 

work with awarded grant recipients to ensure full compliance with Federal civil rights 

requirements. Recipients are encouraged to demonstrate that they have a plan in place that 

demonstrates action to create an inclusive workplace environment with a commitment to equal 

opportunity and freedom from harassment.37 

 
37 This could include provisions that prohibit unlawful discrimination against people with former justice 
involvement; efforts to prevent hostility and harassment based on race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, 
gender identity, national origin, and disability; training on anti-harassment and third-party reporting procedures, and 
robust anti-retaliation measures, covering employees and contractors. 

99

Item 10.



 

 
 

(g) Federal Contract Compliance  

As a condition of grant award and consistent with EO 11246, Equal Employment Opportunity 

(30 FR 12319, and as amended), all Federally assisted contractors are required to make good 

faith efforts to meet the goals of 6.9 percent of construction project hours being performed by 

women, in addition to goals that vary based on geography for construction work hours and for 

work being performed by people of color. Under Section 503 of the Rehabilitation Act and its 

implementing regulations, affirmative action obligations for certain contractors include an 

aspirational employment goal of 7 percent workers with disabilities. 

The U.S. Department of Labor’s Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs (OFCCP) 

is charged with enforcing Executive Order 11246, Section 503 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, 

and the Vietnam Era Veterans’ Readjustment Assistance Act of 1974. OFCCP has a Mega 

Construction Project Program through which it engages with project sponsors as early as the 

design phase to help promote compliance with non-discrimination and affirmative action 

obligations. OFCCP will identify projects that receive an award under this notice and are 

required to participate in OFCCP’s Mega Construction Project Program from a wide range of 

Federally assisted projects over which OFCCP has jurisdiction and that have a project cost above 

$35 million. DOT will require project sponsors with costs above $35 million that receive awards 

under this funding opportunity to partner with OFCCP, if selected by OFCCP, as a condition of 

their DOT award. Under that partnership, OFCCP will ask these project sponsors to make clear 

to prime contractors in the pre-bid phase that project sponsor’s award terms will require their 

participation in the Mega Construction Project Program. Additional information on how OFCCP 

makes their selections for participation in the Mega Construction Project Program is outlined 

100

Item 10.



 

 
 

under “Scheduling” on the Department of Labor website: 

https://www.dol.gov/agencies/ofccp/faqs/construction-compliance.   

3. Reporting  

i. Progress Reporting on Grant Activities  

Each applicant selected for RAISE grant funding must submit quarterly progress reports 

and Federal Financial Reports (SF-425) to monitor project progress and ensure accountability 

and financial transparency in the RAISE grant program.  

ii. Performance Reporting  

Each applicant selected for RAISE grant funding must collect and report to the DOT 

information on the project’s performance based on performance indicators DOT identifies 

related to program goals (e.g., travel time savings, greenhouse gas emissions, passenger counts, 

level of service, etc.) and other information as requested by DOT. Performance indicators should 

include measurable goals or targets that DOT will use internally to determine whether the project 

meets program goals, and grant funds achieve the intended long-term outcomes of the RAISE 

Grant Program. To the extent possible, performance indicators used in the reporting should align 

with the measures included in the application and should relate to at least one of the selection 

criteria defined in Section E.1. Performance reporting continues for several years after project 

construction is completed, and DOT does not provide RAISE grant funding specifically for 

performance reporting. 

iii. Program Evaluation 

As a condition of grant award, RAISE grant recipients may be required to participate in 

an evaluation undertaken by DOT, or another agency or partner. The evaluation may take 

different forms such as an implementation assessment across grant recipients, an impact and/or 

101

Item 10.

https://www.dol.gov/agencies/ofccp/faqs/construction-compliance


 

 
 

outcomes analysis of all or selected sites within or across grant recipients, or a benefit/cost 

analysis or assessment of return on investment. The Department may require applicants to collect 

data elements to aid the evaluation. As a part of the evaluation, as a condition of award, grant 

recipients must agree to: (1) make records available to the evaluation contractor; (2) provide 

access to program records, and any other relevant documents to calculate costs and benefits; (3) 

in the case of an impact analysis, facilitate the access to relevant information as requested; and 

(4) follow evaluation procedures as specified by the evaluation contractor or DOT staff.  

Recipients and sub-recipients are also encouraged to incorporate program evaluation 

including associated data collection activities from the outset of their program design and 

implementation to meaningfully document and measure the effectiveness of their projects and 

strategies. Title I of the Foundations for Evidence-Based Policymaking Act of 2018 (Evidence 

Act), Pub. L. No. 115–435 (2019) urges Federal awarding agencies and Federal assistance 

recipients and subrecipients to use program evaluation as a critical tool to learn, to improve 

equitable delivery, and to elevate program service and delivery across the program lifecycle. 

Evaluation means “an assessment using systematic data collection and analysis of one or more 

programs, policies, and organizations intended to assess their effectiveness and efficiency” 

(codified at 5 U.S.C. § 311). For grant recipients, evaluation expenses are allowable costs (either 

as direct or indirect), unless prohibited by statute or regulation, and such expenses may include 

the personnel and equipment needed for data infrastructure and expertise in data analysis, 

performance, and evaluation (2 CFR § 200) 

 
iv. Reporting of Matters Related to Recipient Integrity and Performance  

If the total value of a selected applicant’s currently active grants, cooperative agreements, 

and procurement contracts from all Federal awarding agencies exceeds $10,000,000 for any 

102

Item 10.



 

 
 

period of time during the period of performance of this Federal award, then the applicant during 

that period of time must maintain the currency of information reported to the SAM that is made 

available in the designated integrity and performance system (currently FAPIIS) about civil, 

criminal, or administrative proceedings described in paragraph 2 of this award term and 

condition.  This is a statutory requirement under section 872 of Public Law 110-417, as amended 

(41 U.S.C. 2313).  As required by section 3010 of Public Law 111-212, all information posted in 

the designated integrity and performance system on or after April 15, 2011, except past 

performance reviews required for Federal procurement contracts, will be publicly available. 

G. Federal Awarding Agency Contacts 

For further information concerning this notice please contact the RAISE grant program staff 

via e-mail at RAISEgrants@dot.gov, or call Howard Hill at 202-366-0301.  A TDD is available 

for individuals who are deaf or hard of hearing at 202-366-3993.  In addition, DOT will post 

answers to questions and requests for clarifications on DOT’s website at 

www.transportation.gov/RAISEgrants.  To ensure applicants receive accurate information about 

eligibility or the program, the applicant is encouraged to contact DOT directly, rather than 

through intermediaries or third parties, with questions.  DOT staff may also conduct briefings on 

the RAISE grant selection and award process upon request.   

H. Other information  

1. Protection of Confidential Business Information 

All information submitted as part of or in support of any application shall use publicly 

available data or data that can be made public and methodologies that are accepted by industry 

practice and standards, to the extent possible.  If the applicant submits information that the 

applicant considers to be a trade secret or confidential commercial or financial information, the 

103

Item 10.

mailto:RAISEgrants@dot.gov
http://www.transportation.gov/BUILDgrants


 

 
 

applicant must provide that information in a separate document, which the applicant may cross-

reference from the application narrative or other portions of the application. For the separate 

document containing confidential information, the applicant must do the following: (1) state on 

the cover of that document that it “Contains Confidential Business Information (CBI);” (2) mark 

each page that contains confidential information with “CBI;” (3) highlight or otherwise denote 

the confidential content on each page; and (4) at the end of the document, explain how disclosure 

of the confidential information would cause substantial competitive harm.  DOT will protect 

confidential information complying with these requirements to the extent required under 

applicable law.  If DOT receives a Freedom of Information Act (FOIA) request for the 

information that the applicant has marked in accordance with this section, DOT will follow the 

procedures described in its FOIA regulations at 49 CFR § 7.29.  Only information that is in the 

separate document, marked in accordance with this section, and ultimately determined to be 

confidential under § 7.29 will be exempt from disclosure under FOIA. 

2. Publication/Sharing of Application Information  

Following the completion of the selection process and announcement of awards, DOT 

intends to publish a list of all applications received along with the names of the applicant 

organizations and funding amounts requested. Except for the information properly marked as 

described in Section H.1., DOT may make application narratives publicly available or share 

application information within DOT or with other Federal agencies if DOT determines that 

sharing is relevant to the respective program’s objectives.  

 
Pete Buttigieg 

 
 
 

Issued in Washington D.C. on January 3, 2023 

104

Item 10.



105

Item 10.



 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM ANALYSIS 
 

Project/Issue Name: 23-R-07 A Resolution of The City Council Authorizing Execution of an 
Agreement with Springfield Winwater Works Co. for the Purchase of 
Water Meters to Meet the City’s Anticipated Needs in 2023.   

Submitted By: Garrett Brickner, Assistant BUILDS Administrator 

Date: February 7, 2023 
 

Issue Statement 

The BUILDS Department would like to purchase water meters for the year based on estimated need and 

the beginning of our replacement program. 

Discussion and/or Analysis 

The City estimated the amount of water meters we believe we will need for the year based on 

development occurring. The City requested and received a quote from Springfield Winwater for (600) 

residential 5/8 water meters, (30) commercial 1” meters, and (40) 2” meters.   The quote for these 

meters was $122,642.20.  This is a budgeted expense this year in the water and wastewater fund since 

billing for both relies on metering water usage. The city recaptures the cost for the meter and 

installation during permitting. Winwater is the regional supplier for Muller, who makes Hersey meters, 

in this area. Muller’s Hersey meters we use are full metal body which in our experience are superior to 

plastic bodies which freeze, leak, and break at a higher rate.  Furthermore, by being as consistent as 

possible with the type of meter used in town, the better prepared we are to maintain, work on, replace, 

or rebuild meters.  

 

Recommended Action 

Staff recommends approval. 

106

Item 11.



RESOLUTION NO. 23-R-07 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 23-R-07 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF AN AGREEMENT WITH 
SPRINGFIELD WINWATER WORKS CO. FOR THE PURCHASE OF WATER METERS TO MEET THE 

CITY’S ANTICIPATED NEEDS IN 2023  
 

WHEREAS, the City of Republic, Missouri (“City” or “Republic”) is a municipal corporation and 
Charter City located in Greene County, Missouri, being duly organized and existing under the laws of the 
State of Missouri; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City utilizes Hersey Water Meters, produced and sold by Mueller Meters, in 

accordance with the City’s approved Construction Specifications Manual; and   
 
WHEREAS, Mueller Meters has one authorized distributor of the Hersey Water Meters in 

Southwest Missouri, Springfield Winwater Works Co. (“Springfield Winwater”); and   
 
WHEREAS, Springfield Winwinter is the certified Sole Source Provider of Mueller water meters in 

the southwest Missouri area, which includes the City; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City’s BUILDS Department recently requested a quote for a specified number of 

water meters based upon the anticipated needs to meet current development rates within the City; and  
 
WHEREAS, Springfield Winwater provided a quote that includes 600 (six hundred) residential 5/8 

water meters, 30 (thirty) commercial 1” meters, and 40 (forty) 2” meters, for a total of $122,642.20; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Council finds it is in the best interest of the City and its residents to purchase the 

water meters from Springfield Winwater at the prices shown on the quote provided to the City.  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF REPUBLIC, MISSOURI, 
AS FOLLOWS: 

 

Section 1. The City Administrator and/or his designee, on behalf of the City, is authorized to 
enter into an agreement with Springfield Winwater Works Co. for the purchase of 
water meters, as specified in the quote from Springfield Winwater, attached 
hereto as “Attachment 1,” and incorporated by reference, at the estimated price 
of $122,642.20. 

 
Section 2. The City Administrator, or his designee(s), on behalf of the City, authorized to take 

all other reasonable, necessary steps to implement this Resolution. 
 
Section 3.  The whereas clauses are specifically incorporated herein by reference.  

Section 4.  This Resolution shall take effect after passage as provided by law. 

PASSED AND APPROVED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Republic, Missouri, 
this __________ day of __________________, 2023. 
 
 
 
      __________________________________________ 
Attest:        Matt Russell, Mayor  

107

Item 11.



RESOLUTION NO. 23-R-07 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 23-R-07 
 

 
 
____________________________________ 
Laura Burbridge, City Clerk 
 
 
Approved as to Form:   

 
Megan McCullough, City Attorney  
 
 
Final Passage and Vote: 

 

108

Item 11.



 

To:  Finance Department 
From:  Karen Haynes, BUILDS Administrator 
CC:  Eric Brown, Operations Director 
Date:  October 18, 2022 
Subject:  Mueller Water Products Sole Source Provider of Hersey Water Meters 

 
The City of Republic utilizes Hersey Water Meters, produced and sold by Mueller Meters, in accordance 
with the City’s approved Construction Specifications Manual.   
 
Mueller Meters has one authorized distributor of the Hersey Water Meters in Southwest Missouri, 
Springfield Winwater.   
 
The BUILDS Department is requesting approval of Springfield Winwater, as a Sole Source Provider 
(Authorized Distributor), of Hersey Water Meters, produced and sold by Mueller Meters. 
 
 
 
 

 

 

109

Item 11.



110

Item 11.



111

Item 11.



112

Item 11.



 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM ANALYSIS 
 

Project/Issue Name: 23-R-08 A Resolution of the City Council Appointing Network Engineer 
James Strathdee as Replacement to Deputy City Administrator Andrew 
Nelson to Serve as the City’s Alternate Regional Broadband Initiative 
Board Member. 

Submitted By: Andrew Nelson, BUILDS Administrator 

Date: February 7, 2023 
 

 

Issue Statement 

To change the alternate board member to Network Engineer James Strathdee. 

 

Discussion and/or Analysis 

Network Engineer James Strathdee has extensive knowledge and expertise in broadband internet services 

and would be an ideal candidate to serve as the City’s Alternate RBI Board Member.  City Administrator 

David Cameron will remain the City’s Primary RBI Board Member.  This appointment will relieve Deputy 

City Administrator Andrew Nelson of his duties as Alternate RBI Board Member. 

The Board Member is tasked with assisting in establishing bylaws and parameters for the broadband 

initiative, along with other regional leaders who will be appointed by their respective municipalities via 

Resolution. 

Recommended Action 

Staff recommends approval. 

113

Item 12.



RESOLUTION NO. 23-R-08 

RESOLUTION NO. 23-R-08 

 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL APPOINTING NETWORK ENGINEER JAMES STRATHDEE AS 
REPLACEMENT TO DEPUTY CITY ADMINISTRATOR ANDREW NELSON TO SERVE AS THE CITY’S 

ALTERNATE REGIONAL BROADBAND INITIATIVE BOARD MEMBER 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Republic, Missouri, (“City” or “Republic”) is a municipal corporation and 

Charter City located in Greene County, Missouri, being duly created, organized, and existing under the 
laws of the State of Missouri; and 

 
WHEREAS, in Resolution No. 22-R-17, the City Council authorized the City Administrator to 

execute a cost share agreement with Christian County, Nixa, Ozark, Strafford, Willard and Greene County 
(together with the City, “the Participants”) to identify a qualified consultant to conduct a broadband 
feasibility study for the purpose of bringing high-speed broadband internet services to the City (and 
surrounding areas) (“the Feasibility Study”); and 
 

WHEREAS, In Ordinance No. 22-22, the City Council authorized the City Administrator to execute 
a Regional Broadband Initiative Participation Agreement with City Utilities of Springfield (“CU”) and the 
Participants, pursuant to which the Participants would combine their efforts through a Regional 
Broadband Initiative Board (“RBI Board”); and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Article II Paragraph A of the RBI Board’s Bylaws, each of the Participants 

is required to appoint one (1) primary member and one (1) alternate member to the RBI Board; and 
 
WHEREAS, on June 21, 2022, via Resolution 22-R-32, City Administrator David Cameron was 

appointed to serve as the City’s Primary RBI Board Member and BUILDS Department Administrator (now 
Deputy City Administrator) Andrew Nelson was appointed to serve as the City’s Alternate RBI Board 
Member; and 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the RBI Board’s Bylaws, the City’s primary and alternate RBI Board 
members will serve until such time as they are replaced by the City with consent of the City Council; and 

 
WHEREAS, as the RBI Board’s work progresses, the City believes it would be beneficial for a City 

employee with specialized knowledge and expertise in the highly technical subject area of regional 
broadband services to serve as one of the City’s RBI Board members; and  

 
WHEREAS, Network Engineer James Strathdee has extensive knowledge and expertise in 

broadband internet services and would be an ideal candidate to serve as the City’s Alternate RBI Board 
Member, with City Administrator David Cameron to continue his service as the City’s Primary RBI Board 
Member. 

 
WHEREAS, Mr. Strathdee will replace Deputy City Administrator Andrew Nelson in this 

appointment as the new Alternate RBI Board Member for the City. 
  
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF REPUBLIC, MISSOURI, 

AS FOLLOWS: 

 
Section 1. Network Engineer James Strathdee is hereby appointed to serve as the City’s 

Alternate RBI Board Member, with City Administrator David Cameron to continue his 

service as the City’s Primary RBI Board Member. 

114

Item 12.



RESOLUTION NO. 23-R-08 

RESOLUTION NO. 23-R-08 

 

 

 

Section 2. With the appointment of Mr. Strathdee, Deputy City Administrator Andrew 

Nelson is hereby relieved of his duties as Alternate RBI Board Member for the City. 

 
Section 3. The City Administrator, or his designee, on behalf of the City, is authorized to take 

all other reasonably necessary steps to implement this Resolution.  
 
Section 4.  The WHEREAS clauses are hereby specifically incorporated herein by reference.  

 
Section 5.  This Resolution shall become effective on and after the date of passage and 

approval as provided by law.  

 
PASSED AND APPROVED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Republic, Missouri, 

this __________ day of __________________, 2023. 
 
 
 
      __________________________________________ 

Matt Russell, Mayor  
Attest:  
 
____________________________________ 
Laura Burbridge, City Clerk 
 
 
Approved as to Form:   

 
Megan McCullough, City Attorney  
 
Final Passage and Vote: 
 
 

 

 

115

Item 12.


	Top
	Item 1.	Appointment- P & Z
	Appointment Certificate-Jeff Hayes

	Item 2.	minutes-12/6 workshop
	City Council Workshop Minutes_20221206_final

	Item 3.	Minutes-Sup meeting
	Supervisor Meeting Work Session Minutes_20230112_draft

	Item 4.	minutes
	City Council Meeting Minutes_20230117_draftLBB

	Item 5.	vendor list
	Vendor Audit Report

	Item 6.	records
	record destruction

	Item 7.	2nd reading of SUBD-FNL 22-010 Westbury Gardens Phase Two Final Plat
	SUBD-FNL 22-010 Staff Report
	23-ORD - Approving Final Plat Phase 2 Westbury Gardens Subdivision_MEM FINAL
	SUBD-FNL 22-010 Vicinity Map
	106-121 Westbury Gardens Ph 2 (2nd sub)

	Item 8.	2nd reading of SUBD-FNL 22-011 Wilson's Creek Villas Final Plat
	SUBD-FNL 22-011 Staff Report
	23-ORD - Approving Final Plat Wilsons Creek Villas_MEM FINAL
	SUBD-FNL 22-011 Vicinity Map
	2022-213 3nd REV Final Plat

	Item 9.	CIP #6
	CIP #6 STAFF REPORT (02-07-23)
	23-R-XX - Burns and Mac Contract Price Amendment CIP6_MEM FINAL
	CIP #6 CONTRACT PRICE AMENDMENT_ATTACHMENT 1 to Resolution
	CIP #6 Exhibit (02-07-23) (002)

	Item 10.	raise grant
	SR - Draft RAISE Grant 2023 
	23-R-XX - BUILDS RAISE Grant with OTO_MEM FINAL
	RAISE 2023 NOFO Amendment 1
	MM_Segments

	Item 11.	meter purchase
	SR - Water Meter Purchase 
	23-R-XX - Authorizing Agreement with Springfield Winwater to Purchase Meters for 2023_MEM FINAL
	Winwater Sole Source Memo (10-18-22)
	Winwater Sole Source for Meters letter
	Republic 1-31-23

	Item 12.	RBI Representatives-adding IT
	Exhibit - RBI Board Appointments
	23-R-XX - Altering City's Primary and Alternate RBI Board Members_MEM FINAL

	Bottom

